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CHAIRPERSON
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Mr. Nadeem Aslam Bu�    
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Mrs. Fa�ma Nadeem  Member

COMPANY SECRETARY & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr.Saeed Ahmad Khan

AUDITORS
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134-A, Abu Bakar Block, New Garden Town, Lahore

TAX ADVISER

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. (Chartered Accountants)
Servis House, 2nd Floor, 2 Main Gulberg, 
Jail Road, Lahore.

LEGAL ADVISER

Salman Akram Raja.
Raja Mohammad Akram & Co., 
Advocates & Legal Consultants
33-C Main Gulberg Lahore.

REGISTRAR OF THE COMPANY

Vision Consul�ng Ltd.
3 – C , 1st  floor, LDA Flats,  Lawrance  Road Lahore.
Ph: + 92 42 36283096-97

REGISTERED OFFICE

44-E-1,Gulberg III, Lahore.
Ph: + 92 42 3571 4191-94,
Fax: + 92 42 3571 0048
W:   www.hiratex.com.pk

MILLS

8 KM Manga Raiwind Road Raiwind District Kasur.

No�ce is hereby given that 26th annual general mee�ng of the members of 
Hira Tex�le Mills Limited will be held on Tuesday, October 31, 2017 at 11.00 
AM at the registered office of the company i.e.44 E/1 Gulberg III, Lahore, to 
transact the following: 

1. To confirm the minutes of the last General Mee�ng. 

2. To receive and adopt the audited accounts of the company for the year 
ended on June 30, 2017 together with the Directors and auditor's 
reports thereon.

3. To consider appointment of external audits for the financial year 
ending June 30, 2018.

4.  SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 To consider and, if thought fit, Pass the following Special Resolu�on 
with or without modifica�on(s). 

 I. To consider and approve the special resolu�on in terms of Sec�on 
199 of the Companies Act 2017, with or without amendments: 

  RESOLVED that the Company be and is hereby authorized to make 
temporary loans/ running advances from �me to �me to the 
extent of Rs. 250,000,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Fi�y Million 
only) to Hira Terry Mills Ltd an associated Company for a period of 
one year.

  FURTHER RESOLVED that  the Chief Execu�ve of the Company be 
and is hereby authorized to undertake and make the above 
temporary loans/advances as short term financing on the terms 
and condi�ons given in the statement under Sec�on 134(3) of the 
companies act-2017 annexed herewith.

 II. To Consider and approve the amendment to be made in the Ar�cle 
of Associa�on of the Company and if thought fit, pass the 
following resolu�on with or without amendments as a special 
resolu�on:

  RESOLVED that in accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 38 and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, and 
subject to requisite permission and clearance, the following new 
Ar�cle 40 A be and is hereby inserted a�er the exis�ng Ar�cle 40 of 
the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company:

  “40 A.   E-vo�ng Subject to any rules or regula�ons that may be 
made from �me to �me by the Securi�es and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (the SECP), is this regard, Members may 
exercise vo�ng rights at general mee�ng through electronic 
means if the Company receives the requisite demand for poll in 
accordance with the applicable laws. The Company shall facilitate 
the vo�ng by electronic means in the manner and in accordance 
with the requirements prescribed by the SECP”.

 III.   To seek the consent of shareholders for transmission of Annual 
Audited Accounts through CD/DVD/USB instead of transmi�ng 
the said accounts in hard copies and if deemed fit pass the 
following resolu�on as Special Resolu�on with or without 
modifica�on:

  RESOLVED that transmission of annual audited accounts to the 
shareholders in so� form i.e. CD/DVD/USB as no�fied by 
Securi�es &Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide its SRO No. 
470(I) 2016 dated May 31, 2016 or in hard copy be and is hereby 
approved.

  FURTHER RESOLVED  that the Company Secretary be and is hereby 
authorized to take or cause to be taken any and all ac�ons 
necessary and incidental for the purposes of altering the Ar�cles 
of Associa�on of the Company, and make necessary filings and 
complete legal formali�es as may be required to implement the a 
foresaid resolu�on.

 To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

Notes

1- The statement under sec�on 134(3) (b) of the Companies Act, 2017, is 
annexed with this no�ce to the members.

2- The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 
October 24, 2017 to October 31, 2017 (both days inclusive).

3- A member en�tled to a�end and vote at the General Mee�ng may 
appoint any person as proxy to a�end and vote instead of him/her. No 
person other than a member shall act as proxy.

4- An instrument appoin�ng a proxy and the power of a�orney or other 
Authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially cer�fied copy 
of such power or authority, in order to be valid, must be deposited at 
the registered office of the company at least 48 hours before the �me 
of the mee�ng and must be duly stamped, singed and witnessed.

5- Members who have not submi�ed copy of valid CNIC are once again 
advised to submit the same without further delay to ensure 
compliance with the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
(SECP) No�fica�on S.R.O.19(1)2014 dated January 10, 2014 read with 
No�fica�on S.R.O. 831(1)2012 dated July 5, 2012.

6- The account holders of CDC are requested to bring their original 
NI/Passport for the purpose of iden�fica�on at the mee�ng.

7- As directed by the SECP vide Circular No. 18 of 2012 dated June 5, 2012, 
we once again give the opportunity to those shareholders who have 
not yet provided mandate informa�on, to authorize the company to 
directly credit the cash dividend, if any, declared by the company in 
future, in their respec�ve bank account instead of issuing a dividend 
warrant by providing their dividend mandate, in case of book entry 
securi�es in CDS, to respec�ve CDS par�cipants and in case of physical 
share to Company's Independent Share Registrar. Copy of dividend 
mandate from may be downloaded from Company's website 
www.hiratex.com.pk

8- In compliance with direc�ves issued by the Securi�es and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan and / or Federal Board of Revenue from �me to 
�me. Shareholders who have not yet provided their dividend mandate 
informa�on and / or CNIC and / or NTN (as the case may be) are 
requested to provide the same at the earliest as follows:

· The shareholders who hold Company Shares in Physical form are 
requested to submit the above informa�on to the Share Registrar.

 Shareholders maintaining their shareholdings under Central 
Depository system (CDS) are advised to submit the above informa�on 
directly to relevant par�cipant / CDC Investor Account Service 

 Members are also requested to update their tax paying status 
(Filler/Non-Filer) to the Company Share Registrar.

9- In terms of sub sec�on 1(b) of Sec�on 134 of the Companies Act, 2017, 
Members can also a�end and par�cipate in the AGM through video 
conference facility, if members residing the vicinity, collec�vely holding 
10% or more shareholding, provide their consent in wri�ng, to 
par�cipate in the AGM through video conference at least ten (10) days 
prior to date of AGM.

 A�er receiving the consent of the members in aggregate 10% or more 
shareholding, the Company will in�mate members regarding venue of 
video conference facility at least five (5) days before the date of the 
AGM along with complete informa�on necessary to enable them to 
access such facility.

(By the order of the Board)

Saeed Ahmad Khan

Company SecretaryLahore: October 09, 2017

http://www.hiratex.com.pk


HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E D

Hira Tex�le Mills Limited02 HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E D

Annual Report 2017 03

COMPANY INFORMATION NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

CHAIRPERSON

Mrs. Shahnaz Umar

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr. Nadeem Aslam Bu�    

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mrs. Shahnaz Umar
Mr. Muhammad Umar Virk
Mr. Nadeem Aslam Bu�
Mrs. Fa�ma Nadeem
Mrs. Sadiya Umair
Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik (Independent Director)
Mr. Usman Khalid

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik  Chairperson
Mr. Muhammad Umar Virk  Member
Mrs. Usman Khalid    Member

HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mrs. Sadiya Umair  Chairperson
Mr. Nadeem Aslam Bu�  Member
Mrs. Fa�ma Nadeem  Member

COMPANY SECRETARY & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr.Saeed Ahmad Khan

AUDITORS

Deloi�e Yousaf Adil  (Chartered Accountants)
134-A, Abu Bakar Block, New Garden Town, Lahore

TAX ADVISER

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. (Chartered Accountants)
Servis House, 2nd Floor, 2 Main Gulberg, 
Jail Road, Lahore.

LEGAL ADVISER

Salman Akram Raja.
Raja Mohammad Akram & Co., 
Advocates & Legal Consultants
33-C Main Gulberg Lahore.

REGISTRAR OF THE COMPANY

Vision Consul�ng Ltd.
3 – C , 1st  floor, LDA Flats,  Lawrance  Road Lahore.
Ph: + 92 42 36283096-97

REGISTERED OFFICE

44-E-1,Gulberg III, Lahore.
Ph: + 92 42 3571 4191-94,
Fax: + 92 42 3571 0048
W:   www.hiratex.com.pk

MILLS

8 KM Manga Raiwind Road Raiwind District Kasur.

No�ce is hereby given that 26th annual general mee�ng of the members of 
Hira Tex�le Mills Limited will be held on Tuesday, October 31, 2017 at 11.00 
AM at the registered office of the company i.e.44 E/1 Gulberg III, Lahore, to 
transact the following: 

1. To confirm the minutes of the last General Mee�ng. 

2. To receive and adopt the audited accounts of the company for the year 
ended on June 30, 2017 together with the Directors and auditor's 
reports thereon.

3. To consider appointment of external audits for the financial year 
ending June 30, 2018.

4.  SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 To consider and, if thought fit, Pass the following Special Resolu�on 
with or without modifica�on(s). 

 I. To consider and approve the special resolu�on in terms of Sec�on 
199 of the Companies Act 2017, with or without amendments: 

  RESOLVED that the Company be and is hereby authorized to make 
temporary loans/ running advances from �me to �me to the 
extent of Rs. 250,000,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Fi�y Million 
only) to Hira Terry Mills Ltd an associated Company for a period of 
one year.

  FURTHER RESOLVED that  the Chief Execu�ve of the Company be 
and is hereby authorized to undertake and make the above 
temporary loans/advances as short term financing on the terms 
and condi�ons given in the statement under Sec�on 134(3) of the 
companies act-2017 annexed herewith.

 II. To Consider and approve the amendment to be made in the Ar�cle 
of Associa�on of the Company and if thought fit, pass the 
following resolu�on with or without amendments as a special 
resolu�on:

  RESOLVED that in accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 38 and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, and 
subject to requisite permission and clearance, the following new 
Ar�cle 40 A be and is hereby inserted a�er the exis�ng Ar�cle 40 of 
the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company:

  “40 A.   E-vo�ng Subject to any rules or regula�ons that may be 
made from �me to �me by the Securi�es and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (the SECP), is this regard, Members may 
exercise vo�ng rights at general mee�ng through electronic 
means if the Company receives the requisite demand for poll in 
accordance with the applicable laws. The Company shall facilitate 
the vo�ng by electronic means in the manner and in accordance 
with the requirements prescribed by the SECP”.

 III.   To seek the consent of shareholders for transmission of Annual 
Audited Accounts through CD/DVD/USB instead of transmi�ng 
the said accounts in hard copies and if deemed fit pass the 
following resolu�on as Special Resolu�on with or without 
modifica�on:

  RESOLVED that transmission of annual audited accounts to the 
shareholders in so� form i.e. CD/DVD/USB as no�fied by 
Securi�es &Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide its SRO No. 
470(I) 2016 dated May 31, 2016 or in hard copy be and is hereby 
approved.

  FURTHER RESOLVED  that the Company Secretary be and is hereby 
authorized to take or cause to be taken any and all ac�ons 
necessary and incidental for the purposes of altering the Ar�cles 
of Associa�on of the Company, and make necessary filings and 
complete legal formali�es as may be required to implement the a 
foresaid resolu�on.

 To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

Notes

1- The statement under sec�on 134(3) (b) of the Companies Act, 2017, is 
annexed with this no�ce to the members.

2- The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 
October 24, 2017 to October 31, 2017 (both days inclusive).

3- A member en�tled to a�end and vote at the General Mee�ng may 
appoint any person as proxy to a�end and vote instead of him/her. No 
person other than a member shall act as proxy.

4- An instrument appoin�ng a proxy and the power of a�orney or other 
Authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially cer�fied copy 
of such power or authority, in order to be valid, must be deposited at 
the registered office of the company at least 48 hours before the �me 
of the mee�ng and must be duly stamped, singed and witnessed.

5- Members who have not submi�ed copy of valid CNIC are once again 
advised to submit the same without further delay to ensure 
compliance with the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
(SECP) No�fica�on S.R.O.19(1)2014 dated January 10, 2014 read with 
No�fica�on S.R.O. 831(1)2012 dated July 5, 2012.

6- The account holders of CDC are requested to bring their original 
NI/Passport for the purpose of iden�fica�on at the mee�ng.

7- As directed by the SECP vide Circular No. 18 of 2012 dated June 5, 2012, 
we once again give the opportunity to those shareholders who have 
not yet provided mandate informa�on, to authorize the company to 
directly credit the cash dividend, if any, declared by the company in 
future, in their respec�ve bank account instead of issuing a dividend 
warrant by providing their dividend mandate, in case of book entry 
securi�es in CDS, to respec�ve CDS par�cipants and in case of physical 
share to Company's Independent Share Registrar. Copy of dividend 
mandate from may be downloaded from Company's website 
www.hiratex.com.pk

8- In compliance with direc�ves issued by the Securi�es and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan and / or Federal Board of Revenue from �me to 
�me. Shareholders who have not yet provided their dividend mandate 
informa�on and / or CNIC and / or NTN (as the case may be) are 
requested to provide the same at the earliest as follows:

· The shareholders who hold Company Shares in Physical form are 
requested to submit the above informa�on to the Share Registrar.

 Shareholders maintaining their shareholdings under Central 
Depository system (CDS) are advised to submit the above informa�on 
directly to relevant par�cipant / CDC Investor Account Service 

 Members are also requested to update their tax paying status 
(Filler/Non-Filer) to the Company Share Registrar.

9- In terms of sub sec�on 1(b) of Sec�on 134 of the Companies Act, 2017, 
Members can also a�end and par�cipate in the AGM through video 
conference facility, if members residing the vicinity, collec�vely holding 
10% or more shareholding, provide their consent in wri�ng, to 
par�cipate in the AGM through video conference at least ten (10) days 
prior to date of AGM.

 A�er receiving the consent of the members in aggregate 10% or more 
shareholding, the Company will in�mate members regarding venue of 
video conference facility at least five (5) days before the date of the 
AGM along with complete informa�on necessary to enable them to 
access such facility.

(By the order of the Board)

Saeed Ahmad Khan

Company SecretaryLahore: October 09, 2017

http://www.hiratex.com.pk


HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E D

Hira Tex�le Mills Limited04 HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E D

05

VISION STATEMENT

A dynamic profitable and professionally 

managed successful business organiza�on.

MISSION STATEMENT

Hira Tex�le Mills Ltd is commi�ed to the 

highest standards of integrity, honesty, 

openness and professionalism in all of its 

ac�vi�es whenever they are undertaken.

We, the Management Team of HTML are 

striving to improve the quality of yarn by 

con�nuously improving its manufacturing 

facili�es. We are commi�ed to posi�oning the 

Company at the apex of the industry by 

sa�sfying our valued customers, archiving 

superior returns for shareholders, by providing 

congenial work environment where the 

employees feel part of the organiza�on and be 

a good corporate ci�zen by fulfilling our social 

responsibili�es. 

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 134 (3)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

Hira Terry Mills Limited is public limited (unlisted) Company having assets of Rs. 5368.331 millions with paid up capital of Rs. 472.080 millions. The company 
manufactures and deals in all types of Towels.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED COMPANY

(A) Maximum limit of running advance / temporary loan Rs.250 million to Hira Terry Mills Limited in terms of sec�on 208 of companies ordinance 1984 was 
approved by the members for a period of one year on Oct 31, 2016 with a provision for extension. This limit is to be enhanced for one year further. The 
company has not given any temporary loan / running advance to Hira Terry during 2016-2017.It is now purposed that members may approve limit of Rs. 
250 million for one year as running advance/ temporary loan to Hira Terry Mills Limited.

(B) The investment would be made at such �mes as the Chief Execu�ve may think appropriate in the following manner:

(i) Name of Investee Company Hira Terry Mills Limited

(ii) Nature of Loan/Advance Short Term running advances from �me to �me

(iii) Purpose of short term loans and advances The purpose of short term loans and advances is to provide financial facili�es 
as and when required for mee�ng the Immediate requirements of Working 
Capital of the borrowing Company.

(iv) Amount of Loan /Running advance (Maximum Limit) Rs. 250,000,000/- (Rupees Two hundred fi�y million only)

(v) Rate of mark up 1% above the prevailing short term lending rates of the Commercial banks 
which, in any case, will not be less than the borrowing cost of the inves�ng 
Company.

(vi) Tenor For a period of 1 year commencing from Nov 1, 2017 to Oct 31, 2018 
extendable depending upon financial condi�ons of Hira Terry Mills Ltd.

(vii) Securi�es No security is considered necessary as both the Companies are under 
common management control.

(viii) Source of Funds Company's own internal cash reserves.

(ix) Repayable Schedule The loans and advances are adjustable maximum within a period of twelve 
months.

(x) Other Terms & Condi�ons i) Hira Tex�le shall have the right to add, amend or alter any terms and 
condi�ons including the rate of Markup or call back the advance 
amount a�er no�ce to Hira Terry. 

ii) In the event of default the Board of Directors shall have the right to call 
back the amount and/or charge addi�onal markup as penalty.

(ix) Benefits likely to accrue to the Company and its shareholders from 
loans and advances

The Inves�ng Company and its shareholders will be benefited in a manner 
that their investment will fetch a return of 1% above the Lending rates of 
commercial banks. Hira Tex�le owns 22,140,000 shares in the issued capital 
of Hira Terry and shall also benefit if Hira Terry declares dividends on account 
of be�er business of Hira Terry on the basis of Financial Facility being 
provided to it.

© Brief about Hira Terry Mills Limited the investee Company on the basis of  last  audited financial statements for the year ended 30-06-2017:

Net Sales     Rs.   3,390.79   Million
Equity-

 
Net

   
Rs.   1,626.299 Million

Long term Loans and Lease

   

Rs.    464.692   Million
Current Ra�o

     

 
1.119: 1

GP Ra�o

    

 20.62 %
Net Profit Ra�o

     

 6.45 %
Shareholding of Hira Tex�le Mills Ltd. 22.140 Million Shares or          46.90 %

 
     

Share of  Profit to Hira Tex�le Mills Ltd.

  

  Rs.    102.676 Million
Outstanding Balance of Running advances / Loan as on June 30, 2017 Nil

Maximum outstanding Balance of  Running advance / Loan during the year 2016-2017.

(D) The Directors of Hira Tex�le Mills Limited have no other interest in the investment except that 3 Directors of Hira Tex�le Mills Limited are share holders in 
Hira Terry Mills Ltd, the associated company. Their consolidated holding is 618,600 shares (1.31%).   

(E) The audited Financial Statement of Hira Terry Mills Limited and Hira Tex�le Mills Limited for the year ended June 30, 2017, can be inspected from 10.00 
a.m. to 11.30 a.m. in all working days up-to October 22, 2017 by the shareholders of Hira Tex�le.

Nil

Annual Report 2017
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Name of Director A�endance

Mr. Muhammad Umar Virk

Mr. Nadeem Aslam Bu�

Mrs. Shahnaz Umar

Mr. Umair Umar - Resigned on 21-2-2017

Mrs. Fa�ma Nadeem

Mrs. Sadiya Umair

Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik

6 (Six)

7 (Seven)

7 (Seven)

4 (Four)

5 (Five)

4 (Four)

Name of Director A�endance

Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik (Chairman)

Mr. Umair Umar - Resigned

Mrs. Shahnaz Umar - Resigned

4 (Four)

2 (Two)

3 (Three)

 

 

Net Sale 

Gross Profit

Share of Profit of Hira Terry

Profit before taxa�on

Provision for taxa�on

Profit for the year

EPS - basic & diluted 

(Rupees in Million)

2017 2016

3,361.275

255.012

102.676

43.958

36.503

7.456

0.09

DIRECTORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

The Board of Directors feels pleasure in presen�ng the 
Company's Audited financial statements together with the 
auditor's report thereon for the year ended on June 30, 2017.

Financial Statements have been endorsed by the Chief 
Execu�ve Officer and the Chief Financial Officer in 
accordance with the Code of corporate Governance, having 
been recommended for approval by the Audit Commi�ee of 
the Board and approved by the Board of Directors for 
presenta�on.

Company Performance 

Following are the opera�ng & Financial results:-

Due to unfavorable market condi�on, depressed yarn prices 
and low margins your company earned a�er tax profit of Rs. 
7.456 million as compared to profit of Rs. 93.608 Million 
during the corresponding period. Earning per share (EPS) for 
the year is Rs. 0.01 as compare to earnings of Rs. 1.08 during 
the corresponding previous year. Sales revenue decreased by 
4.60 % over the previous year. G.P for the year under review 
is 7.58 % as compared to 9.50 %. Distribu�on cost increased 
from 1.04 % of sales to 1.22 % of sales. Administra�ve 
expenses decreased from 1.81 % of sales to 1.60% of sales. 
Due to efficient u�liza�on of financial resources, repayment 
of long term loans, the finance cost decreased by 3.88% over 
the last year. Share of profit of M/S Hira Terry associated 
company is Rs.102.676 Million as compared to last year Rs. 
91.56 Million. The profit of Hira Terry has increased due to 
increase in margins for value added products and superior 
marke�ng by Terry US office. The management is concerned 
about the profitability of the company for the coming year 
due to extremely weak demand of spun yarn and ever 
increasing produc�on cost, uncertainty in prices of co�on 
and yarn, high energy cost coupled with load shedding in Gas 
& Power sector and higher financial cost, blocked of GST / 
Income Tax refund. However the management is pu�ng its 
best efforts to maximize company's profit for the next year.

Expansion and BMR

The Company has spent 96.729 Millions on BMR.

Dividend

Due to circumstances discussed above, the Board of 
Directors does not recommend divided for the year ended 
June 30, 2017.

Related Par�es

The transac�ons between the related par�es were made at 
arm's length prices determined in accordance with the 
comparable uncontrolled prices method. The company has 
fully complied with the best prac�ces of the transfer pricing 
as contained in the lis�ng regula�on of stock exchanges in 
Pakistan.

Financial Statements Audit

Financial statements of the Company have been audited 
without any qualifica�on by Messrs Deloi�e Yousaf Adil 
(Chartered Accountants) who have been appointed as the 
statutory external auditors of the Company.

ISO 9001 – 2008 Cer�fica�on

The company con�nues to operate the high standard of 
quality and had obtained latest version of cer�fica�on, which 
is renewed every year. The quality control cer�fica�on will 
help to build up trust of new and old customers.

Environments, Health and Safety

The Company maintains safe working condi�ons without risk 
to the health of all employees and public at large. The 
management has maintained safe environment in all its 
opera�ons through out the year and is constantly upgrading 
their living facili�es.

Future Plans

Although the performance of the company is sa�sfactory 
during the year but the future market situa�on is changing to 
adversely due to decrease in the yarn prices. The 
management is formula�ng mul� dimensional strategy to 
tackle all these issues. We are focusing on diversifica�on of 
our product range along with value addi�on and 
consolida�ng our efforts on quality improvements.

Corporate & Financial Repor�ng Frame Work

As required by the Code of Corporate Governance, Directors 
are pleased to report that:

I. The financial statements prepared by the management 
of the Company present fairly its true state of affairs, the 
results of its opera�ons, cash flows and changes in equity.

ii. Proper books of account of the Company have been 
maintained.

iii. Appropriate accoun�ng policies have been consistently 
applied in prepara�on of financial statements and 
accoun�ng es�mates are based on reasonable and 
prudent judgment.

iv. Interna�onal Finance Repor�ng Standards (IFRS) as 
applicable in Pakistan have been followed in prepara�on 
of financial statements. Any departures therefrom has 
been adequately disclosed and explained.

v. The system of internal control is sound and has been 
effec�vely implemented and monitored.

vi. There are no doubts upon the Company's ability to 
con�nue as a going concern.

vii. Opera�ng and financial data and key ra�o of six years are 
annexed.

viii. The value of investment of contributory provident fund 
as at June 30, 2017 amount to Rs. 16.460 Million.

ix. The pa�ern of shareholding as at June 30, 2017 is 
annexed.

x. Except as stated hereunder, no trade in the shares of the 
company were carried out by the Directors, CEO, CFO, 
Company secretary, their spouses and minor children.

 Mr. Muhammad Umar Virk Director purchased 240,000 
shares and sold 2,284,104 shares.

Board Mee�ng

During the year under review Seven (7) mee�ngs were held. 
A�endance by each Director is as follows:

Human Resource Commi�ee

In compliance with the code of Corporate Governance, the 
Board of Directors has cons�tuted a Human Resource 
Commi�ee (HR Commi�ee) whose members consist of three 
Directors of whom two are non-execu�ve directors 
appointed by the Board of Directors. During the year one (1) 
mee�ngs of HR commi�ee of the Board were held – 
a�endance by each Director is as follows:

3,523.40

334.66

91.56

101.47

7.86

93.61

1.08

Mr. Usman Khalid-Appointed on 23-2-2017 2 (Two)

5 (Five)

Leave of absence was granted to Directors who could not 
a�end some of the Board mee�ngs.

Audit Commi�ee

The Board of Directors in compliance with the code of 
corporate governance has established an audit commi�ee 
which is fully func�onal. The commi�ee comprises three 

members. Chairman of the commi�ee is an Independent 
non-execu�ve director. During the year four (4) mee�ngs of 
Audit Commi�ee were held. A�endance by each Director is 
as follows:

Mr. Umar Virk 1 (One)
appointed in place of Mrs. Shahnaz Umar

Mr. Usman Khalid 1 (One)
appointed in place of Mr. Umari Umar

Name of Director A�endance

Mrs. Sadiya Umair (Chairman)

Mr. Nadeem Aslam Bu�

Mrs. Faitma Nadeem

1 (One)

1 (One)

1 (One)

Auditors

The present auditors Deloi�e Yousaf Adil (Chartered 
Accountants), re�re at the conclusion of the annual general 
mee�ng and being el igible,  offer themselves for 
reappointment for the financial year ending June 30, 2018.
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accordance with the Code of corporate Governance, having 
been recommended for approval by the Audit Commi�ee of 
the Board and approved by the Board of Directors for 
presenta�on.

Company Performance 

Following are the opera�ng & Financial results:-

Due to unfavorable market condi�on, depressed yarn prices 
and low margins your company earned a�er tax profit of Rs. 
7.456 million as compared to profit of Rs. 93.608 Million 
during the corresponding period. Earning per share (EPS) for 
the year is Rs. 0.01 as compare to earnings of Rs. 1.08 during 
the corresponding previous year. Sales revenue decreased by 
4.60 % over the previous year. G.P for the year under review 
is 7.58 % as compared to 9.50 %. Distribu�on cost increased 
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due to extremely weak demand of spun yarn and ever 
increasing produc�on cost, uncertainty in prices of co�on 
and yarn, high energy cost coupled with load shedding in Gas 
& Power sector and higher financial cost, blocked of GST / 
Income Tax refund. However the management is pu�ng its 
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effec�vely implemented and monitored.

vi. There are no doubts upon the Company's ability to 
con�nue as a going concern.

vii. Opera�ng and financial data and key ra�o of six years are 
annexed.

viii. The value of investment of contributory provident fund 
as at June 30, 2017 amount to Rs. 16.460 Million.

ix. The pa�ern of shareholding as at June 30, 2017 is 
annexed.

x. Except as stated hereunder, no trade in the shares of the 
company were carried out by the Directors, CEO, CFO, 
Company secretary, their spouses and minor children.

 Mr. Muhammad Umar Virk Director purchased 240,000 
shares and sold 2,284,104 shares.

Board Mee�ng

During the year under review Seven (7) mee�ngs were held. 
A�endance by each Director is as follows:
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In compliance with the code of Corporate Governance, the 
Board of Directors has cons�tuted a Human Resource 
Commi�ee (HR Commi�ee) whose members consist of three 
Directors of whom two are non-execu�ve directors 
appointed by the Board of Directors. During the year one (1) 
mee�ngs of HR commi�ee of the Board were held – 
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Leave of absence was granted to Directors who could not 
a�end some of the Board mee�ngs.
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The Board of Directors in compliance with the code of 
corporate governance has established an audit commi�ee 
which is fully func�onal. The commi�ee comprises three 

members. Chairman of the commi�ee is an Independent 
non-execu�ve director. During the year four (4) mee�ngs of 
Audit Commi�ee were held. A�endance by each Director is 
as follows:
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appointed in place of Mrs. Shahnaz Umar
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appointed in place of Mr. Umari Umar
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The present auditors Deloi�e Yousaf Adil (Chartered 
Accountants), re�re at the conclusion of the annual general 
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reappointment for the financial year ending June 30, 2018.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

                      
                      

                      
                      

                    
                    

                   
                   

                   
                   

                    
                    

 
 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Net Sales 3,361,275 3,523,396           4,061,800          4,775,199        3,985,373       4,087,241       
Cost of  Sales 3,106,262 3,188,731           3,587,519          4,328,582        3,450,137       3,534,210       
Gross profit                255,013                334,666               474,281             446,617            535,236            553,031 

Administra�on  Expenses 53,669
 

63,862
                 

76,844
                

73,314
              

64,921
             

63,211
             

Selling Expences 41,175
 

36,677
                 

50,039
                

54,092
              

72,921
             

63,685
             

Opera�ng  Profit                160,169                234,127               347,398             319,210            397,394            426,134 

Other Opera�ng Income 876
 

5,715
                   

801
                     

2,562
                

1,958
               

4,531
               Profit before Interest & Taxa�on                161,045                239,842               348,199             321,772            399,352            430,666 

Other Opera�ng Expenses                        207                     1,596                    5,956                  2,217 6,963
               

14,635
             Financial & Other Charges                219,556                228,410               270,151             285,867 298,442

           
295,903

           Share of profit Hira Terry Mills Ltd.                102,676                  91,565                 78,303                73,636 56,322
             

51,619
             Profit before Taxa�on 43,958

 
101,400

              
150,395

             
107,324

            
150,269

           
171,747

           Provision for Taxa�on 36,503

 

7,862

                   

58,057

                

(27,047)

             

(21,731)

            

31,954

             Profit a�er Taxa�on (Net Profit) 7,456

 

93,537

                 

92,338

                

134,372

            

172,000

           

139,793

           
Financial Posi�on

Current Assets 2,627,405

 

2,255,468

           

2,340,097

          

2,046,423

        

2,033,590

       

1,921,574

       
Current Liabili�es 2,951,446

 

2,464,531

           

2,428,841

          

2,300,419

        

2,221,571

       

2,050,797

       
Opera�ng Fixed Assets 2,545,357

 

2,574,458

           

2,083,750

          

1,948,545

        

1,956,540

       

1,645,180

       
Total Assets 5,967,446

 

5,514,606

           

5,021,274

          

4,515,040

        

4,443,263

       

3,962,309

       
Net Capital Employed 3,016,019

 

3,050,075

           

2,592,433

          

2,214,621

        

2,221,693

       

1,911,512

       
Long Term Debts 426,044

 

466,125

              

589,701

             

330,560

            

433,096

           

207,184

           
Share Holder,s Equity 1,968,629

 

1,945,237

           

1,852,817

          

1,762,184

        

1,629,113

       

1,528,665

       
Surplus on Revalua�on on Fixed Assets 529,235

 

451,377

              

65,893

                

65,893

              

65,893

             

65,893

             
Break -up Value Per Share (Rupees) 22.74

 

22.47

                   

23.54

                  

22.39

                

22.77

               

21.36

               
Number of shares 86,577,920

 

86,577,920

         

78,707,200

        

78,707,200

      

71,552,000

     

71,552,000

     Financial Ra�os Analysis (Annualized)

Current Ra�o 0.89

 

0.92

                     

0.96

                    

0.89

                   

0.92

                  

0.94

                  

Total Debt to Total Assets 7.14

 

8.45

                     

11.74

                  

7.32

                   

9.75

                  

5.23

                  

Acid -Test Ra�o 16.55

 

17.26

                   

17.59

                  

15.36

                

18.87

               

18.08

               

Debt Equity 19:81 19:81 24:76 16:84 21:79 11:89

Debt Coverage Ra�o 3.55

 

0.94

                     

1.08

                    

1.09

                   

1.22 1.21

Leverage Ra�o 2.03

 

1.83

                     

1.71

                    

1.56

                   

1.73

                  

1.59

                  

Interest Coverage Ra�o 1.20

 

1.44

                     

1.56

                    

1.38

                   

1.50

                  

1.58

                  

Fixed Assets Turnover 1.32

 

1.37

                     

1.95

                    

2.45

                   

2.04

                  

2.48

                  

Total Assets Turnover 0.56

 

0.64

                     

0.81

                    

1.06

                   

0.90

                  

1.03

                  

Per Share Results & returns

Earning per Share 0.09 1.08 1.15 1.69 2.40 1.95

Return on Capital employed- net 0.25

                     

3.07

                     

3.56

                    

6.07

                   

7.74

                  

7.31

                  

Gross Profit to Sales 7.59 9.50 11.68 9.35 13.43

               

13.53

               

Opera�ng Profit To Sales 4.77

                     

6.64

                     

8.55

                    

6.68

                   

9.97

                  

10.43

               

Net Income to Sale (Profit margin) 0.22

                     

2.65

                     

2.27

                    

2.81

                   

4.32

                  

3.42

                  

Return on Assets (ROA) 0.12

                     

1.70

                     

1.84

                    

2.98

                   

3.87

                  

3.53

                  

          

          

          

          

Amount Rs. (000)
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18.87
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2453         86,577,920 

FORM  34

Share Holders Total
Shares HeldFrom To

Shareholding

HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E D

Hira Tex�le Mills Limited12 HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E D

13

Pa�ern of Shareholding
As at June 30, 2017

INFORMATION UNDER CLAUSE XVI(J) OF THE CODE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE    

As at June 30, 2017
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-

-

-

-

Descrip�on

Director, Chief Execu�ve Officer, and their 

Spouse,and minor children. 

MR. MUHAMMAD UMAR VIRK

MRS. SHAHNAZ UMAR

MRS. SADIYA UMAIR

FATIMA NADEEM

NADEEM ASLAM BUTT

MR. SHAUKAT NAZIR MALIK

Associated Companies, undertakings and related 

par�es. Adamjee Insurance Co.

Banks, Development Finance Ins�tu�ons, 

Non Banking Financial Instui�ons.

Joint Stock Cpmpanies

Modarabas and Mutual Funds

General Public

        Local

        Foreign

Others

Shareholders holding 5% or more

MR. MUHAMMAD UMAR VIRK

MRS. UMAIRA OMAR

MRS. SHAHNAZ UMAR

MRS. SADIYA UMAIR

Shares Held %

23,619,758                      27.28                

5,725,854                        6.61                   

5,637,933                        6.51                   

1,063                                0.00                   

55,705                              0.06                   

967 0.00                   

35,041,280 40.47

-                                     -                     

324,296                            0.37                   

3,121,818                        3.61                   

2,000                                0.00                   

47,582,959                      54.96                

-                     

Nil -                     

505,567                            0.58                   

86,577,920 100.00 

23,619,758                      27.28                

8,603,922                        9.94                   

5,725,854                        6.61                   

5,637,933                        6.51                   
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10001
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65001
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75001
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85001
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95001
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105001
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115001
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125001

145001
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165001
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195001

205001

225001
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245001

255001

295001

305001

310001
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345001

355001

395001

420001

450001

465001

475001
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495001
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825001
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1095001
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1865001

5635001

5725001

8600001

23380001
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30000
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105000
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300000

310000

315000

325000

350000

360000

400000

425000

455000

470000

480000

490000

500000

600000

605000

830000

1000000

1100000

1110000

1870000

5640000

5730000

8605000

23385000

4,520

108,268

339,655

2,304,965

2,467,039

1,734,761

1,602,381

1,550,433

1,374,083

857,330

613,142

862,925

1,237,275

477,750

525,705

494,159

822,697

72,567

156,500

166,500

523,950

280,000

2,395,500

302,490

436,500

456,035

239,000

623,212

255,000

899,500

151,000

164,500

337,775

350,000

365,186

1,399,750

210,000

225,500

238,500

250,000

260,000

300,000

1,239,337

311,500

324,295

698,500

358,000

400,000

420,480

906,100

465,500

477,500

486,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

602,250

829,500

1,000,000

1,098,500

1,107,022

1,866,602

5,637,933

5,725,854

8,603,922

23,383,072
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Mrs. Fa�ma Nadeem

Category Names

Mr. Nadeem Aslam Bu�

Non-Execu�ve Directors

Mrs. Sadiya Umair

Independent Director

Mr. Usman Khalid

Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik

HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E D

Hira Tex�le Mills Limited14 HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E D

15

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE
CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of 
Corporate Governance (the Code) contained in the 
Regula�on No.5.19 of the Lis�ng Regula�ons of the Pakistan 
Stock Exchange Limited for the purpose of establishing a 
framework of good governance, whereby a listed Company is 
managed in compliance with the best prac�ces of corporate 
governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the CCG 
in the following manner:

1. The  Company  encourages  representa�on of 
independent non-execu�ve directors and directors 
represen�ng minority interests on its Board of directors. 
At present the Board includes :

Execu�ve Directors Mr. Muhammad Umar Virk

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and 
decisions on material  transac�ons, including 
appointment and determina�on of remunera�on and 
terms and condi�ons of employment of the CEO and 
other execu�ve directors, have been taken by the Board 
in line with Ar�cle of associa�on of the Company.

8. The mee�ngs of the Board were presided over by the 
Chairman and the Board met at least once every quarter. 
Wri�en no�ces of the Board mee�ngs, along with 
agenda, were circulated at least seven days before the 
mee�ng.  The minutes  of  the mee�ngs were 
appropriately recorded and circulated.

9. During this year two Directors Mr. Nadeem Aslam Bu� & 
Mrs. Fa�ma Nadeem have acquired the Director's 
Training Program from ICMAP (Ins�tute of Cost & 
Management Accountants) and became the cer�fied 
Director and now four directors have obtained 
cer�fica�on under Director Training Program (DTP). One 
Director have 14 Years educa�on and 22 year experience 
as Director of Public limited company inclusive 10 years 
listed company and one Independent Director has 14 
years educa�on.

10. The Board approved the appointment of the Internal 
Auditors of the Company including their remunera�on 
and terms and condi�ons of employment. The 
company's CFO and Company Secretary were appointed 
prior to the lis�ng of the Company and for a new 
appointment to these posi�ons in future, compliance 
with CCG will be ensured.

11. The Directors Report for this year has been prepared in 
compliance with the requirements of the CCG and fully 
describes the salient ma�ers required to be disclosed.

12. The CEO and CFO duly endorsed the financial statements 
of the Company before approval by the Board.

13. The Directors, CEO, and Execu�ves do not hold any 
interest in the shares of the company other than that 
disclosed in the categories of shareholding.

14. The Company has complied with all the corporate and 
financial repor�ng requirements of the Code.

15. The Board has formed / Recons�tuted its audit 
commi�ee which is fully func�onal. The commi�ee 
comprises three members, of whom two are non-
execu�ve directors and chairman of the commi�ee is an 
independent non execu�ve director.

16. The mee�ng of the audit commi�ee was held at least 
once every quarter prior to approval of interim and final 
results of the Company as required by the Code. The 
terms of reference of the commi�ee have been formed 
and advised to the commi�ee for compliance.

17. The Board has formed an HR and remunera�on 
commi�ee. It comprises three members of whom two 
are non-execu�ve directors and the chairman of the 
commi�ee is an non-execu�ve director.

18. The Board has set-up an effec�ve internal Audit 
func�on. The staff is considered to be suitably qualified 
and experienced for the purpose and is fully conversant 
with the policies and procedures of the Company.

19. The related party transac�ons and pricing methods have 
been placed before the Audit Commi�ee and approved 
by the Board of Directors with necessary jus�fica�on for 
pricing methods for transac�ons that were made on 
terms equivalent to those that prevail in the arm's length 
transac�ons.

20. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed 
that they have been given a sa�sfactory ra�ng under the 
Quality Control Review Program of the Ins�tute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any of 
the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor 
children do not hold shares in the Company.

Mrs. Shahnaz Umar

 The independent director meets the criteria of 
independence under clause 1 (b) of the CCG.

2. The directors have confirmed that none of them is 
serving as a director in more than seven listed 
companies, including this company.

3. All the resident directors of the Company are registered 
as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment 
of any loan to any banking company, a DFI or an NBFI.

4. A casual vacancy occurred on Feb 21, 2017 were filled up 
by the Board within s�pulated �me.

5. The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has 
ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminate it throughout the company along with its 
suppor�ng policies and procedures.

6. The Board has developed a mission statement, overall 
corporate strategy and significant policies of the 
Company. A complete record of par�culars of significant 
policies along with the dates on which they were 
approved or amended is being maintained.

21. The statutory auditors and persons associated with 
them have not been appointed to provide any other 
services except in accordance with the lis�ng regula�ons 
and the auditors have confirmed that they have 
observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

22. The 'closed period', prior to the announcement of 
interim / final results, and business decisions, which may 
materially affect the market price of company's 
securi�es, was determined and in�mated to directors, 
employees and stock exchange.

23. Material/ price sensi�ve informa�on has been 
disseminated among all market par�cipants at once 
through stock exchange.

24. We confirm that all other material principles contained 
in the CCG have been complied.

On Behalf of the Board

NADEEM ASLAM BUTT

Chief Execu�ve OfficerLahore: October 09, 2017
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Auditors’ Report to the Members

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate 
Governance (the Code) prepared by the Board of Directors of Hira Textile Mills Limited (the Company), for the year ended June 
30, 2017 to comply with the requirements of the Code contained in Chapter 5.19 of Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange 
Limited, where the Company is listed. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review, 
to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the 
Company's compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the 
requirement of the Code. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents 
prepared by the Company to comply with the Code. 

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control 
systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board 
of Directors' statement on internal controls covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such 
internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of Audit Committee, place 
before the Board of Directors for their review and approval its related party transactions distinguishing between transactions 
carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at 
arm's length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have 
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of approval of related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon 
recommendation of Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party 
transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not 
appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code as 
applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Chartered Accountants

Engagement Partner:
Rana M. Usman Khan

Dated: October 9, 2017
Lahore

Review Report on Statement of Compliance with Best
practices of Code of Corporate Governance We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Hira Tex�le Mills Limited (the Company) as at June 30, 2017 and the related 

profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement, and statement of changes in equity together 
with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the informa�on and 
explana�ons which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company's management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare and 
present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accoun�ng standards and the requirements of the 
Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the audi�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any material 
misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence suppor�ng the amounts and disclosures in the above said 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accoun�ng policies and significant es�mates made by management, as well as, 
evalua�ng the overall presenta�on of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion and, a�er due verifica�on, we report that:

(a) In our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;

(b) In our opinion–

 (i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with 
the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and are in agreement with the books of account and are further in accordance with 
accoun�ng policies consistently applied;

 (ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of Company's business; and

 (iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance with the 
objects of the Company.

© In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the balance sheet, profit and 
loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with 
the notes forming parts thereof conform with the approved accoun�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the 
informa�on required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and, respec�vely give a true and fair 
view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2017 and of the profits, its comprehensive income, cash flows and 
changes in equity for the year then ended; and

(d) In our opinion, no Zakat was deduc�ble at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

Chartered Accountants

Engagement Partner:
Rana M. Usman Khan

Dated: October 9, 2017
Lahore
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BALANCE SHEET
as ate June 30, 2017

BALANCE SHEET
as ate June 30, 2017

2017

Note Rupees

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 4

Long term investments 5

Long term deposits 6

Current assets

Stores, spares and loose tools 7 115,297,420
 

Stock-in-trade 8 2,017,328,533
 

Trade debts 9 78,287,805
 

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 10 223,710,662
                               Advance income tax 11 100,897,812
                               Sales tax refundable 85,671,176
                                 Cash and bank balances 12 6,211,703

                                    
2,627,405,111

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2,545,357,331 

762,452,734
 

32,249,742
                                 

3,340,059,807
 

2016

Rupees

                           

                              

2,574,458,017

661,418,777

23,260,348

3,259,137,142

246,369,506

1,556,917,267

75,832,714

193,393,488

110,516,433

45,704,067

26,734,940

2,255,468,415

 

TOTAL ASSETS 5,967,464,918

 

 

5,514,605,557

2017 2016

Note Rupees Rupees

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Authorized capital

870,000,000 870,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 13 865,779,200 865,779,200 

Share premium 14 82,500,000 82,500,000 

Un-appropriated profit 1,020,350,274 996,958,197 

1,968,629,474 1,945,237,397 

Surplus on revalua�on of property, plant and equipment 15 529,234,822 550,041,726 

Non-current liabili�es

Long term financing 16 400,384,490 430,000,000 

Liabili�es against assets subject to finance lease 17 25,659,431 36,124,645 

Deferred liabili�es 18 92,110,458 88,671,217 

518,154,379 554,795,862 

Current liabili�es

Trade and other payables 19 701,857,076 576,697,976 

Accrued mark-up 20 59,686,751 57,348,517 

Short term borrowings 21 2,056,268,085 1,683,933,727 

Current por�on of long term financing 22 133,634,330 146,550,352 

2,951,446,242 2,464,530,572 

Con�ngencies and commitments 23

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,967,464,918 5,514,605,557 

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

87,000,000 (2016: 87,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 

each
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
for the year ended June 30, 2017

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended June 30, 2017

2017 2016

Note Rupees Rupees

Sales 24 3,361,274,854                            3,523,396,385                            

Cost of sales 25 (3,106,262,019)                          (3,188,730,767) 

Gross profit 255,012,835 334,665,618 

Distribu�on cost 26 (41,174,966) (36,676,812) 

Administra�ve expenses 27 (53,668,513) (63,862,291) 

Other income 28 875,872 5,714,916 

(93,967,607)                                (94,824,187) 

Opera�ng profit 161,045,228                               239,841,431 

Finance cost 29 (219,555,927)                              (228,410,314) 

Other charges 30 (207,000) (1,525,606) 

(58,717,699) 9,905,511 

Share of profit of associate 102,676,061 91,564,822 

Profit before taxa�on 43,958,362 101,470,333 

Provision for taxa�on 31 (36,502,613) (7,862,310) 

Profit for the year 7,455,749 93,608,023 

32 0.09 1.08 

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

2017 2016

Rupees Rupees

Profit for the year 7,455,749                                    93,608,023                                  

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified 

 to profit or loss account:

Remeasurement of defined benefit obliga�on (652,176) (175,874) 

Related deferred tax 50,447 27,176 

Share of associate's remeasurement of defined benefit obliga�on (1,642,104) (1,044,004) 

(2,243,833)                                  (1,192,702) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 5,211,915 92,415,321 

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended June 30, 2017 for the year ended June 30, 2017

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxa�on

 Adjustments for:

Finance cost 29

 
Exchange loss 30

 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 28

 

Provision for employees re�rement benefits 18.1.2

 

Deprecia�on 4.1

 

Share of profit of associate

 

 

 

Working capital changes

(Increase)/decrease in current assets

Stores, spares and loose tools

 

Stock in trade

 

Trade debts

 

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

 

Sales tax refundable

 

Increase /(decrease) in current liabili�es

Trade and other payables

 

 

Cash generated from opera�ons

 

Employees re�rement benefits paid

 

Finance cost paid

 

Income tax paid

 

 

Net cash (used in) / generated from opera�ng ac�vi�es

 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

 

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

 

Net cash used in inves�ng ac�vi�es

 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term financing obtained

  

Long term financing repaid

Lease liabili�es repaid

Short term borrowings - net

Long term deposits - net

Dividend paid

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing ac�vi�es

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 12

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2017 2016

Rupees Rupees

43,958,362

                      
101,470,333

219,555,927

 

228,410,314

-

 

672,721

(875,872)

 

(5,714,916)

16,816,473

 

14,024,955

134,085,359

 

112,964,371

(102,676,061)

 

(91,564,822)

266,905,826

 

258,792,623

310,864,188

 

360,262,956

131,072,086

 

(69,326,868)

(460,411,266)

 

157,540,549

(2,455,091)

 

49,323,791

(30,317,174)

 

(74,128,019)

(39,967,109)

 

6,338,254

125,159,762

 

(35,895,357)

(276,918,792)

 

33,852,350

33,945,396

 

394,115,306

(17,783,171)

 

(17,958,960)

(217,217,693)

 

(227,203,450)

(25,706,523)

 

(10,585,026)

(260,707,387)

 

(255,747,436)

(226,761,991)

 

138,367,870

(99,943,531)

 

(90,776,532)

1,347,356

 

7,700,000

(98,596,175)

 

(83,076,532)

27,930,050 -

(55,057,291) (119,135,944)

(31,382,132) (11,410,642)

372,334,358 77,351,061

(8,989,394) 3,274,300

(662) (3,502)

304,834,929 (49,924,727)

(20,523,237) 5,366,611

26,734,940 21,368,329

6,211,703 26,734,940

Balance as at July 01, 2015

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transac�on with owners:

Issuance of bonus shares

Balance as at June 30, 2016

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the year

                                                     

Total comprehensive income for the year

                                                                   

Transfer to unappropriated profit on account of:

Incremental deprecia�on - net of deferred tax

Balance as at June 30, 2017

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.
            

787,072,000

       

82,500,000

         

983,250,076

        

1,852,822,076

-

                            

-

                            

93,608,023

          

93,608,023

-

                            

-

                            

(1,192,702)

           

(1,192,702)

-

                            

-

                            

92,415,321

          

92,415,321

78,707,200

         

-

                            

(78,707,200)

         

865,779,200

      

82,500,000

         

996,958,197

        

1,945,237,397

-

                           

-

                           

7,455,749

             

7,455,749

- - (2,243,833) (2,243,833)

- - 5,211,915 5,211,915

- - 18,180,162 18,180,162

865,779,200 82,500,000 1,020,350,274 1,968,629,474

Total

RupeesRupeesRupees

Issued, 

subscribed and 

paid-up capital Share premium

Un-appropriated 

profit

Rupees
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82,500,000

         

983,250,076

        

1,852,822,076

-

                            

-

                            

93,608,023

          

93,608,023

-

                            

-

                            

(1,192,702)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended June 30, 2017

1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs

Amendments to IAS 16 'Property Plant and Equipment' and IAS 38

'Intangible Assets' - Clarifica�on of acceptable methods of deprecia�on

and amor�za�on.

January 01, 2016

Amendments to IAS 16 'Property Plant and Equipment' and IAS 41

'Agriculture' - Measurement of bearer plants

January 01, 2016

Amendments to IAS 27 'Separate Financial Statements' - Equity method

in separate financial statements

January 01, 2016

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presenta�on of Financial Statements' - Disclosure

ini�a�ve.

January 01, 2016

1.1 Hira Tex�le Mills Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on January 31, 1991 as a public limited company under the Companies

Ordinance, 1984. The Company is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal ac�vity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of

yarn. The registered office of the Company is situated at 44-E/1, Gulberg III, Lahore. The produc�on facility is located at Manga Raiwind Road,

Tehsil and District Kasur in the province of Punjab.

1.2 These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is Company's func�onal as well as presenta�on currency. 

Revised Adop�on of new and revised laws, standards and interpreta�ons  

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accoun�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved

accoun�ng standards comprise of such Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards (IFRS) issued by the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards

Board as are no�fied under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case

requirements differ, the provisions of, or direc�ves issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail. 

During the year, the Companies Act, 2017 (the new Companies Act) was enacted and promulgated by the SECP on May 30, 2017. However, SECP

has no�fied through Circular No. 23 of Oct 4, 2017 that companies whose financial year closes on or before December 31, 2017 shall prepare

their financial statements in accordance with the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. Accordingly, the Company shall

prepare the financial statements for year ending June 30, 2018 in accordance with the provisions of the new Companies Act. The Company is

currently in process of determining impact, if any, on future financial statements due to implementa�on of the Act.

2.2 New accoun�ng standards  / amendments and IFRS interpreta�ons that are effec�ve for the year.

The following standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are effec�ve for the year ended June 30, 2017. These standards, interpreta�ons and

the amendments are either not relevant to the Company's opera�ons or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial

statements other than certain addi�onal disclosures. 

Amendments to IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Statements', IFRS 12

'Disclosure of Interests in Other En��es' and IAS 28 'Investments in

Associates and Joint Ventures' - Investment En��es: Applying the

consolida�on excep�on

January 01, 2016

Amendments to IFRS 11 'Joint Arrangements' - Accoun�ng for

acquisi�ons of interests in joint opera�ons

January 01, 2016

2.3 New accoun�ng standards/amendments and IFRS interpreta�ons that are not yet effec�ve.

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.

-   IFRS 1 – First Time Adop�on of Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards

-   IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments

-   IFRS 14 – Regulatory Deferral Accounts

-   IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers

-   IFRS 16 – Leases

-   IFRS 17 – Insurance Contracts

2.4 Accoun�ng conven�ons and basis of prepara�on
 

2.5 Cri�cal judgements in applying accoun�ng policies

The prepara�on of financial statements in conformity with approved accoun�ng standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires management to

make judgements, es�mates and assump�ons that affect the applica�on of accoun�ng policies and the reported amount of assets, liabili�es,

income and expenses.

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpreta�ons and amendments, the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards Board (IASB) has also issued the

following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost conven�on except for revalua�on of certain financial instruments and

certain property and equipment at fair value and recogni�on of certain employee re�rement benefits at present value.

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Amendments as a result of the

disclosure ini�a�ve

January 01, 2017

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Recogni�on of deferred tax assets for

unrealized losses

January 01, 2017

Amendments to IAS 40 'Investment Property': Clarifica�on on transfers of

property to or from investment property

January 01, 2018. Earlier applica�on is

permi�ed.

IFRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Transac�ons and Advance Considera�on': Provides

guidance on transac�ons where considera�on against non-monetary prepaid

asset / deferred income is denominated in foreign currency.

January 01, 2018. Earlier applica�on is

permi�ed.

IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments': Clarifies the accoun�ng

treatment in rela�on to determina�on of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases,

unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty

over income tax treatments under IAS 12 'Income Taxes'.

January 01, 2019

Amendments to IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Statements' and IAS 28

'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' - Sale or contribu�on of assets

between an investor and its associate or joint venture

Effec�ve from accoun�ng period beginning

on or a�er a date to be determined. Earlier

applica�on is permi�ed.

The following standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are only effec�ve for accoun�ng periods, beginning on or a�er the date men�oned

against each of them. These standards, interpreta�ons and the amendments are either not relevant to the Company's opera�ons or are not

expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain addi�onal disclosures.

Effec�ve from accoun�ng
period beginning on or a�er:

Amendments to IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment' - Clarifica�on on the classifica�on

and measurement of share-based payment transac�ons

January 01, 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended June 30, 2017

a) Useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment 

b) Employee re�rement benefits

c) Provision for taxa�on

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Capital work in progress

3.2 Investment in associates

Deprecia�on is recognized so as to write off the cost or valua�on of assets (other than freehold land) less their residual values over their useful

lives, using the reducing balance method. The es�mated useful lives, residual values and deprecia�on method are reviewed at the end of each

repor�ng period, with the effect of any changes in es�mate accounted for on a prospec�ve basis.

An item of opera�ng fixed assets is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the con�nued

use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or re�rement of an item of opera�ng fixed assets is determined as the difference

between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

Capital work in progress and stores held for capital expenditure are stated at cost less any recognized impairment loss. All expenditures

connected with specific assets incurred during installa�on and construc�on period are carried under capital work in progress. These are

transferred to specific assets as and when these assets are available for use.

Surplus arising on revalua�on of property, plant and equipment is credited to surplus on revalua�on of property and equipment account. The

surplus on revalua�on of property, plant and equipment to the extent of incremental deprecia�on charged on the related assets is transferred

by the Company to its unappropriated profit.

Deprecia�on on revalued assets is recognized in profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or re�rement of a revalued asset, the a�ributable surplus

on revalua�on of the asset remaining in the surplus on revalua�on of property and equipment is transferred directly to retained earnings.

The es�mates and associated assump�ons are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under

the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabili�es that are not

readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these es�mates. The es�mates underlying the assump�ons are reviewed on

an on-going basis. Revisions to accoun�ng es�mates are recognized in the period in which the es�mate is revised if the revision affects only that

period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

The areas where various assump�ons and es�mates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where judgment was exercised in

applica�on of accoun�ng policies are as follows:

The Company reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment on regular basis. Any change in es�mates in future years might affect

the carrying amounts of the respec�ve items of property and equipment with a corresponding effect on the deprecia�on charge and

impairment.

The Company uses the valua�on performed by an independent actuary as the present value of its re�rement benefit obliga�ons.

In making the es�mates for income taxes payable by the Company, the management considers the applicable laws and the decisions of the

appellate tax authori�es on certain issues in the past.

3.1 Property, plant and equipment

Opera�ng fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery are stated at cost less accumulated

deprecia�on and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery are stated at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of

revalua�on, less any subsequent accumulated deprecia�on and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. 

Associates are en��es over which the Company has significant influence, but not control. Investment in associate is accounted for using equity 

method of accoun�ng. Under the equity method, the investment in associate is ini�ally recognized at cost and the carrying amount is increased or 

decreased to recognize the Company's share of profit or loss of the associate a�er the date of acquisi�on. The Company's share of the profit or loss of 

the associate is recognized in the Company's profit or loss account. The carrying amount of the investment in associate is reduced by the amount of 

distribu�ons received from the associate. The carrying amount is also adjusted by the amount of changes in the Company's propor�onate interest in 

the associate arising from changes in associate's equity that is recognized directly in equity of the Company account. The carrying amount of 

investment is tested for impairment by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying 

amount and loss, if any, is recognized in profit or loss. When impairment losses subsequently reverse, the carrying amounts of the investment is 

increased to the revised recoverable amounts but limited to the extent of ini�al cost of investments. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in 

the profit and loss account.

3.3 Investments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Held to maturity

Loans and receivable

Available for sale

3.4 Stores, spares and loose tools

These are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is arrived at by using weighted average basis except for goods in transit, which are

stated at actual cost. Net realizable value signifies the es�mated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the es�mated costs of

comple�on and es�mated costs necessary to be incurred in order to make the sale.

All purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date which is the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the

investment. Cost of purchase includes transac�on cost.

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of the investments to assess whether there is any indica�on that such

investments have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indica�on exists, the recoverable amount is es�mated in order to determine the

extent of the impairment loss, if any. Impairment losses are recognized as expense in the profit and loss account. In respect of ‘available for sale’

financial assets, cumula�ve impairment loss less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit and loss account, is

removed from equity and recognized in the profit and loss account. Impairment losses recognized in the profit and loss account on equity

instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss account.

Investments intended to be held for less than twelve months from the balance sheet date or to be sold to raise opera�ng capital, are included in

current assets, all other investments are classified as non-current. Management determines the appropriate classifica�on of its investments at

the �me of the purchase and re-evaluates such designa�on on a regular basis.

The investments made by the Company are classified for the purpose of measurement into the following categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon ini�al recogni�on at

fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term.

Investments with fixed maturity that the management has the intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to maturity and are

ini�ally measured at cost and at subsequent repor�ng dates measured at amor�zed cost using the effec�ve yield method.

Investments are classified as loans and receivables which have fixed or determinable payments and are not quoted in an ac�ve market. These

investments are measured at amor�zed cost using the effec�ve interest method, less any impairment losses.

Investments classified as available for sale are ini�ally measured at cost, being the fair value of considera�on given. At subsequent repor�ng

dates, these investments are remeasured at fair value, unless fair value can not be reliably measured. The investments for which a quoted

market price is not available, are measured at cost as it is not possible to apply any other valua�on methodology. Unrealized gains and losses

arising from the changes in the fair value are included in fair value reserves in the period in which they arise.
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investment. Cost of purchase includes transac�on cost.

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of the investments to assess whether there is any indica�on that such

investments have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indica�on exists, the recoverable amount is es�mated in order to determine the

extent of the impairment loss, if any. Impairment losses are recognized as expense in the profit and loss account. In respect of ‘available for sale’

financial assets, cumula�ve impairment loss less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit and loss account, is

removed from equity and recognized in the profit and loss account. Impairment losses recognized in the profit and loss account on equity

instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss account.

Investments intended to be held for less than twelve months from the balance sheet date or to be sold to raise opera�ng capital, are included in

current assets, all other investments are classified as non-current. Management determines the appropriate classifica�on of its investments at

the �me of the purchase and re-evaluates such designa�on on a regular basis.

The investments made by the Company are classified for the purpose of measurement into the following categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon ini�al recogni�on at

fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term.

Investments with fixed maturity that the management has the intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to maturity and are

ini�ally measured at cost and at subsequent repor�ng dates measured at amor�zed cost using the effec�ve yield method.

Investments are classified as loans and receivables which have fixed or determinable payments and are not quoted in an ac�ve market. These

investments are measured at amor�zed cost using the effec�ve interest method, less any impairment losses.

Investments classified as available for sale are ini�ally measured at cost, being the fair value of considera�on given. At subsequent repor�ng

dates, these investments are remeasured at fair value, unless fair value can not be reliably measured. The investments for which a quoted

market price is not available, are measured at cost as it is not possible to apply any other valua�on methodology. Unrealized gains and losses

arising from the changes in the fair value are included in fair value reserves in the period in which they arise.



Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the period determined in accordance with the prevailing law for taxa�on of income.

The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the period if enacted. The charge

for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments

framed during the period for such years.
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3.5 Stock in trade

3.6 Trade and other receivables

3.7 Cash and cash equivalents

3.8 Employee benefits

3.9 Financial instruments

3.10 Offse�ng of financial assets and liabili�es

Financial assets and liabili�es are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only when there is a legally enforceable right

to set off the recognized amount and the Company intends either to se�le on a net basis or to realize the assets and to se�le the liabili�es

simultaneously.

Financial assets and financial liabili�es are recognized at the �me when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument and derecognized when the Company loses control of contractual rights that comprise the financial assets and in the case of financial

liabili�es when the obliga�on specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecogni�on of financial assets

and financial liabili�es is included in the profit and loss account currently.

The financial assets and liabili�es are subsequently measured at fair value or cost as the case may be. The par�cular recogni�on methods

adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, with the excep�on of stock of waste which is valued at net realizable value. Cost is

determined using the following basis:

Raw materials                                                                                      Weighted average cost

Work in process                                                                        Average manufacturing cost

Finished goods                                                     Average manufacturing cost

Stock in transit                                         Invoice price plus related cost incurred up to 

the repor�ng date

Average manufacturing cost in rela�on to work in process and finished goods consists of direct material, labour and an appropriate propor�on of

manufacturing overheads.

Net realizable value signifies the es�mated selling price in the ordinary course of business less es�mated costs of comple�on and es�mated costs

necessary to make the sale.

Trade debts are carried at original invoice amount less an es�mate made for doub�ul debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the

year end.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and bank balances which are subject to an insignificant

risk of change in value.

Defined benefit plan – gratuity

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all employees according to the terms of employment, subject to a minimum qualifying

period of service. Annual provision is made on the basis of actuarial valua�on to cover obliga�ons under the scheme for employees at the

produc�on facility eligible to gratuity benefits.

The latest actuarial valua�on for gratuity scheme was carried out as at June 30, 2016. Projected unit credit method, using the assump�ons as 

men�oned in respec�ve note, is used for valua�on of the scheme.

Defined contribu�on plan -provident fund

The company operates approved provident fund, defined contribu�ons plan for its employees at the head office. Equal monthly contribu�on are

made, both by the employer and employees @8.33% of gross salary.

3.11 Loans and borrowings

3.12 Finance leases

3.13 Opera�ng leases

3.14 Ijarah transac�ons

3.15 Trade and other payables

3.16 Provisions 

3.17 Revenue

3.18 Related party transac�ons

Interest income is recognized on a �me-appor�oned basis using the effec�ve rate of return.

Domes�c sales are recognized as revenue upon transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership, which coincides with dispatch of goods.

Export sales are recognized as revenue upon transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership, which coincides with date of shipping bill.

Borrowings are ini�ally recorded at the proceeds received. They are subsequently carried at amor�zed cost; any difference between the

proceeds (net of transac�on costs) and the redemp�on value is recognized in the profit and loss account over the period of the borrowings using

the effec�ve interest method. Finance costs are accounted for, on accrual basis and are included in accrued finance cost to the extent of the

amount remaining unpaid.

Borrowing cost directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on, construc�on or produc�on of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a

substan�al period of �me to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, un�l such �me as the assets are

substan�ally ready for their intended use or sale.

Leases for which the Company has substan�ally all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Assets subject to finance

lease are stated at the lower of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease agreement and the fair value of the leased assets at

the commencement of lease, less accumulated deprecia�on and any iden�fied impairment loss.

The related rental obliga�ons, net of finance costs are classified as current and long term depending upon the �ming of the payment. Each lease

payment is allocated between the liability and finance costs so as to achieve a constant rate on the balance outstanding. The interest element of

the rental is charged to income over the lease term.

Leases that do not transfer substan�ally all risks and rewards of ownership are classified as opera�ng leases. Payments made under opera�ng

leases are recognized in profit and loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Ijarah payments are recognized as an expense in the profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the Ijarah terms unless another systema�c basis

are representa�ve of the �me pa�ern of the user's benefit, even if the payments are not on that basis.

Liabili�es for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the considera�on to be paid in the future for the

goods and / or services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or construc�ve obliga�on as a result of past events, it is probable that an

ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on and reliable es�mate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best es�mate.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best es�mate of the considera�on required to se�le the present obliga�on at the balance sheet

date, taking into account the risks and uncertain�es surrounding the obliga�on. Future opera�ng losses are not provided for.

Transac�on with related par�es are carried out on agreed terms.

Current taxa�on



Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the period determined in accordance with the prevailing law for taxa�on of income.

The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the period if enacted. The charge

for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments

framed during the period for such years.
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3.5 Stock in trade

3.6 Trade and other receivables

3.7 Cash and cash equivalents

3.8 Employee benefits

3.9 Financial instruments

3.10 Offse�ng of financial assets and liabili�es

Financial assets and liabili�es are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only when there is a legally enforceable right

to set off the recognized amount and the Company intends either to se�le on a net basis or to realize the assets and to se�le the liabili�es

simultaneously.

Financial assets and financial liabili�es are recognized at the �me when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument and derecognized when the Company loses control of contractual rights that comprise the financial assets and in the case of financial

liabili�es when the obliga�on specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecogni�on of financial assets

and financial liabili�es is included in the profit and loss account currently.

The financial assets and liabili�es are subsequently measured at fair value or cost as the case may be. The par�cular recogni�on methods

adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, with the excep�on of stock of waste which is valued at net realizable value. Cost is

determined using the following basis:

Raw materials                                                                                      Weighted average cost

Work in process                                                                        Average manufacturing cost

Finished goods                                                     Average manufacturing cost

Stock in transit                                         Invoice price plus related cost incurred up to 

the repor�ng date

Average manufacturing cost in rela�on to work in process and finished goods consists of direct material, labour and an appropriate propor�on of

manufacturing overheads.

Net realizable value signifies the es�mated selling price in the ordinary course of business less es�mated costs of comple�on and es�mated costs

necessary to make the sale.

Trade debts are carried at original invoice amount less an es�mate made for doub�ul debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the

year end.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and bank balances which are subject to an insignificant

risk of change in value.

Defined benefit plan – gratuity

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all employees according to the terms of employment, subject to a minimum qualifying

period of service. Annual provision is made on the basis of actuarial valua�on to cover obliga�ons under the scheme for employees at the

produc�on facility eligible to gratuity benefits.

The latest actuarial valua�on for gratuity scheme was carried out as at June 30, 2016. Projected unit credit method, using the assump�ons as 

men�oned in respec�ve note, is used for valua�on of the scheme.

Defined contribu�on plan -provident fund

The company operates approved provident fund, defined contribu�ons plan for its employees at the head office. Equal monthly contribu�on are

made, both by the employer and employees @8.33% of gross salary.

3.11 Loans and borrowings

3.12 Finance leases

3.13 Opera�ng leases

3.14 Ijarah transac�ons

3.15 Trade and other payables

3.16 Provisions 

3.17 Revenue

3.18 Related party transac�ons

Interest income is recognized on a �me-appor�oned basis using the effec�ve rate of return.

Domes�c sales are recognized as revenue upon transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership, which coincides with dispatch of goods.

Export sales are recognized as revenue upon transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership, which coincides with date of shipping bill.

Borrowings are ini�ally recorded at the proceeds received. They are subsequently carried at amor�zed cost; any difference between the

proceeds (net of transac�on costs) and the redemp�on value is recognized in the profit and loss account over the period of the borrowings using

the effec�ve interest method. Finance costs are accounted for, on accrual basis and are included in accrued finance cost to the extent of the

amount remaining unpaid.

Borrowing cost directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on, construc�on or produc�on of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a

substan�al period of �me to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, un�l such �me as the assets are

substan�ally ready for their intended use or sale.

Leases for which the Company has substan�ally all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Assets subject to finance

lease are stated at the lower of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease agreement and the fair value of the leased assets at

the commencement of lease, less accumulated deprecia�on and any iden�fied impairment loss.

The related rental obliga�ons, net of finance costs are classified as current and long term depending upon the �ming of the payment. Each lease

payment is allocated between the liability and finance costs so as to achieve a constant rate on the balance outstanding. The interest element of

the rental is charged to income over the lease term.

Leases that do not transfer substan�ally all risks and rewards of ownership are classified as opera�ng leases. Payments made under opera�ng

leases are recognized in profit and loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Ijarah payments are recognized as an expense in the profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the Ijarah terms unless another systema�c basis

are representa�ve of the �me pa�ern of the user's benefit, even if the payments are not on that basis.

Liabili�es for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the considera�on to be paid in the future for the

goods and / or services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or construc�ve obliga�on as a result of past events, it is probable that an

ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on and reliable es�mate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best es�mate.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best es�mate of the considera�on required to se�le the present obliga�on at the balance sheet

date, taking into account the risks and uncertain�es surrounding the obliga�on. Future opera�ng losses are not provided for.

Transac�on with related par�es are carried out on agreed terms.

Current taxa�on
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Deferred taxa�on

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from differences between the 

carrying amount of assets and liabili�es in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computa�on of the taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabili�es are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is 

probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deduc�ble temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be u�lized.

3.20 Earnings per share 

3.21 Foreign currency transac�ons and transla�on

3.22 Impairment

Financial assets

Non-financial assets

3.23 Dividend distribu�on

Dividend is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is approved by the shareholders in case of final dividend and by the directors in case

of interim dividend.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based on tax rates that have been

enacted or substan�vely enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except in the case

of items credited or charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.

The Company presents basic and diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss

a�ributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted

EPS is determined by adjus�ng the profit or loss a�ributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding for the effects of all dilu�ve poten�al ordinary shares.

Func�onal and presenta�on currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the

Company operates (the func�onal currency). The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s func�onal and

presenta�on currency.

Transac�ons and balances

Foreign currency transac�ons are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transac�ons. All monetary

assets and liabili�es in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date.

Foreign exchange gain and losses on retransla�on are recognized in the profit and loss account. All non-monetary items are translated into Pak

Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of transac�on or on the date when fair values are determined.

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of the financial assets to assess whether there is any indica�on that such

financial assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indica�on exists, the recoverable amount is es�mated in order to determine the

extent of the impairment loss, if any. Impairment losses are recognized as expense in the profit and loss account. In respect of ‘available for sale’

financial assets, cumula�ve impairment loss less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit and loss account, is

removed from equity and recognized in the profit and loss account. Impairment losses recognized in the profit and loss account on equity

instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss account.

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example land, are not subject to deprecia�on/amor�za�on and are tested annually for impairment.

Assets that are subject to deprecia�on/amor�za�on are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 

carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of

assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately iden�fiable cash flows (cash-genera�ng units). Non-

financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each repor�ng date.
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Deferred taxa�on

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from differences between the 

carrying amount of assets and liabili�es in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computa�on of the taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabili�es are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is 

probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deduc�ble temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be u�lized.

3.20 Earnings per share 

3.21 Foreign currency transac�ons and transla�on

3.22 Impairment

Financial assets

Non-financial assets

3.23 Dividend distribu�on

Dividend is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is approved by the shareholders in case of final dividend and by the directors in case

of interim dividend.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based on tax rates that have been

enacted or substan�vely enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except in the case

of items credited or charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.

The Company presents basic and diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss

a�ributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted

EPS is determined by adjus�ng the profit or loss a�ributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding for the effects of all dilu�ve poten�al ordinary shares.

Func�onal and presenta�on currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the

Company operates (the func�onal currency). The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s func�onal and

presenta�on currency.

Transac�ons and balances

Foreign currency transac�ons are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transac�ons. All monetary

assets and liabili�es in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date.

Foreign exchange gain and losses on retransla�on are recognized in the profit and loss account. All non-monetary items are translated into Pak

Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of transac�on or on the date when fair values are determined.

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of the financial assets to assess whether there is any indica�on that such

financial assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indica�on exists, the recoverable amount is es�mated in order to determine the

extent of the impairment loss, if any. Impairment losses are recognized as expense in the profit and loss account. In respect of ‘available for sale’

financial assets, cumula�ve impairment loss less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit and loss account, is

removed from equity and recognized in the profit and loss account. Impairment losses recognized in the profit and loss account on equity

instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss account.

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example land, are not subject to deprecia�on/amor�za�on and are tested annually for impairment.

Assets that are subject to deprecia�on/amor�za�on are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 

carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of

assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately iden�fiable cash flows (cash-genera�ng units). Non-

financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each repor�ng date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended June 30, 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended June 30, 2017

There were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy for the year ended June 30, 2017.

2017 2016

Note  Rupees  Rupees 

4.6 Capital work in progress

Building - civil work 4.6.1                   3,881,926                                       -   

Generator 4.6.2                                 -                          1,813,864 

                  3,881,926                        1,813,864 

4.4 The Company follows the revalua�on model for freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery. The fair value measurement

was performed by Materials & Design Services (Pvt) Limited as at June 30, 2016, independent valuer not related to the Company. Materials &

Design Services (Pvt) Limited is on panel of Pakistan Bankers Associa�on as approved asset valuator. It possesses appropriate qualifica�on and

recent experience in the fair value measurements. 

The fair value of freehold land was determined by taking into account the local market value. Fair values of building on freehold land and plant

and machinery were determined by considering prevailing construc�on rates at that date and prices of similar plant and machinery respec�vely.

The revalua�on resulted in a surplus of Rs. 97.4 million on freehold land, Rs. 132 million on building on freehold land and Rs. 156 million on plant

and machinery. Revalua�on surplus amoun�ng to Rs. 436.9 million (2016: Rs. 451.4 million) remains undepreciated as at June 30, 2017. 

Details of the Company's assets' fair value hierarchy as at June 30, 2017 are as follows:

4.5 Had there been no revalua�on, the book value of the freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery as at June 30, 2017 would

have been as follows:

Had there been no revalua�on, the book value of the freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery as at June 30, 2016 would

have been as follows:

Freehold land                                 -                183,480,000                                 -   183,480,000                  

Building on freehold land                                 -                328,330,450                                 -   328,330,450                  

Plant and machinery                                 -            1,697,057,723                                 -   1,697,057,723               

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Cost
 Accumulated 

deprecia�on Book value

Freehold land                20,113,708                                 -                        20,113,708 

Building on freehold land              273,506,953              126,895,974                    146,610,979 

Plant and machinery          2,440,487,298              958,243,037                1,482,244,261 

RupeesRupeesRupees

Freehold land                20,113,708                                 -                        20,113,708 

Building on freehold land              273,506,953              119,183,546                    154,323,407 

Plant and machinery 2,388,827,562         881,946,996                           1,506,880,566 

Cost
 Accumulated 

deprecia�on Book value

Rupees RupeesRupees
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There were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy for the year ended June 30, 2017.

2017 2016

Note  Rupees  Rupees 

4.6 Capital work in progress

Building - civil work 4.6.1                   3,881,926                                       -   

Generator 4.6.2                                 -                          1,813,864 

                  3,881,926                        1,813,864 

4.4 The Company follows the revalua�on model for freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery. The fair value measurement

was performed by Materials & Design Services (Pvt) Limited as at June 30, 2016, independent valuer not related to the Company. Materials &

Design Services (Pvt) Limited is on panel of Pakistan Bankers Associa�on as approved asset valuator. It possesses appropriate qualifica�on and

recent experience in the fair value measurements. 

The fair value of freehold land was determined by taking into account the local market value. Fair values of building on freehold land and plant

and machinery were determined by considering prevailing construc�on rates at that date and prices of similar plant and machinery respec�vely.

The revalua�on resulted in a surplus of Rs. 97.4 million on freehold land, Rs. 132 million on building on freehold land and Rs. 156 million on plant

and machinery. Revalua�on surplus amoun�ng to Rs. 436.9 million (2016: Rs. 451.4 million) remains undepreciated as at June 30, 2017. 

Details of the Company's assets' fair value hierarchy as at June 30, 2017 are as follows:

4.5 Had there been no revalua�on, the book value of the freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery as at June 30, 2017 would

have been as follows:

Had there been no revalua�on, the book value of the freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery as at June 30, 2016 would

have been as follows:

Freehold land                                 -                183,480,000                                 -   183,480,000                  

Building on freehold land                                 -                328,330,450                                 -   328,330,450                  

Plant and machinery                                 -            1,697,057,723                                 -   1,697,057,723               

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Cost
 Accumulated 

deprecia�on Book value

Freehold land                20,113,708                                 -                        20,113,708 

Building on freehold land              273,506,953              126,895,974                    146,610,979 

Plant and machinery          2,440,487,298              958,243,037                1,482,244,261 

RupeesRupeesRupees

Freehold land                20,113,708                                 -                        20,113,708 

Building on freehold land              273,506,953              119,183,546                    154,323,407 

Plant and machinery 2,388,827,562         881,946,996                           1,506,880,566 

Cost
 Accumulated 

deprecia�on Book value

Rupees RupeesRupees
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-
                             

                       1,334,395 

3,881,926
                 

                       9,989,131 

-                                                (11,323,526)

                  3,881,926                                       -   

2017 2016

 Rupees  Rupees 

                                     49,539,592 

                                     15,525,893 

                                 (63,251,621)

4.6.1

4.6.2

Movement in Building - Civil Work

Opening balance

Addi�ons

Transfers to opera�ng assets

Closing balance

Movement in Generator

Opening balance

Addi�ons

Transfers to opera�ng assets

Closing balance                             

1,813,864 

7,216,709 

(9,030,573) 

-                        1,813,864 

5 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

2017 2016

5.1 Hira Terry Mills Limited

Percentage of ownership interest 46.90% 46.90%

Rupees Rupees

Cost of investment

18,450,000 (2016: 18,450,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 184,500,000                             

Bonus Issue @ 20% 36,900,920                                                 

Share of post acquisi�on profits - unrealized 541,051,814                             

           

5.1.1 Summarized financial informa�on of the associated company is as follows:

Current assets               

Non-current assets               

Current liabili�es               

Non-current liabili�es                  

Revenue               

Profit for the year                  

Other comprehensive loss                     

Total comprehensive income

3,618,163,475

1,750,167,970

3,233,433,235

508,599,336

3,390,790,153

218,925,503

(3,501,288)

215,424,215                 

184,500,000 

-  

476,918,777 

661,418,777 

2,742,165,346 

1,307,830,593 

2,456,275,116 

182,846,164 

3,181,981,323 

195,234,162 

(2,226,021) 

193,008,141 

This represents investment in ordinary shares of Hira Terry Mills Limited (the associated company). The investment has been accounted for by

using equity method. The associated company was incorporated in Pakistan as public limited company under Companies Ordinance, 1984. The

registered office of the associated company is situated at 44-E/1, Gulberg III, Lahore. The produc�on facility is located at Manga Raiwind Road,

Tehsil and District Kasur in the province of Punjab. The details of ownership and investment are as under:

762,452,734                  

5.1.2 Other financial informa�on of the associated company is as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 88,350,308               13,326,301                    

Current financial liabili�es 3,233,433,235         2,456,275,116               

Non-current financial liabili�es 508,599,336            182,846,164                  

Deprecia�on and amor�za�on 72,238,680               67,037,595                    

Interest income 8,862,744                 4,816,312                       

Interest expense 165,528,361            134,028,935         

Income tax expense 13,506,830               31,613,923                    

5.1.3

2017 2016

% %

Ownership Interest 46.90                         46.90                               

Rupees Rupees

Net Assets of the associated company           1,626,298,874                1,410,874,659 

Carrying amount based on net assets 661,700,215                  

Other (281,438)                         

661,418,777 

6 LONG TERM DEPOSITS

U�lity companies and regulatory authori�es 19,789,938               19,651,338                    

Financial ins�tu�ons 12,459,804               3,609,010                       

32,249,742               23,260,348                    

7 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 83,524,679               221,730,127                  

Spares and loose tools 31,772,741               24,639,379                    

115,297,420            246,369,506                  

8 STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material 1,722,800,157         1,045,266,445               

Packing material 8,131,424                 7,584,704                       

Work-in-process 28,968,189               55,584,531                    

Finished goods 8.1 257,428,763            448,481,587                  

2,017,328,533         1,556,917,267               

8.1

Carrying amount of Company's interest in associated 

Company

Stock of finished goods include stock of waste valued at Rs. 5.91 million (2016: Rs. 0.87 million). The en�re stock of waste is valued at net

realizable value.

Reconcilia�on of above summarized financial informa�on to the carrying amount of interest in associated company recognized in

these financial statements are as follows:

2017 2016

Rupees Rupees

762,734,172            

(281,438)                   

762,452,734            

Note

2017 2016

Rupees Rupees
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-
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3,881,926
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-                                                (11,323,526)

                  3,881,926                                       -   

2017 2016

 Rupees  Rupees 

                                     49,539,592 

                                     15,525,893 

                                 (63,251,621)
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees

9 TRADE DEBTS

Foreign 

Secured 9.1 21,513,084               33,070,199                    

Local 

Unsecured - considered good 56,774,721 42,762,515                    

78,287,805 75,832,714                    

9.1 These are secured against le�ers of credit.

10

Advances to suppliers - unsecured, considered good 138,772,997 111,965,437                  

Advances to employees - unsecured, considered good 4,281,823 4,094,981                       

Le�ers of credit 58,691,725 62,731,819                    

Margin deposits 4,543,677 10,372,833                    

Prepayments 817,861 886,319                          

Excise duty refundable 1,953,431 1,953,431                       

Rebate receivable 13,248,480 -                                       

Others 1,400,668 1,388,668                       

223,710,662 193,393,488 

11 ADVANCE INCOME TAX

Advance income tax 136,222,956 140,162,122                  

Provision for taxa�on (35,325,144) (29,645,689)                   

100,897,812 110,516,433                  

12 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 1,593,061                 1,409,332                       

Cash at banks:

In Current accounts - Local currency 4,538,782 25,214,148 

In Saving accounts -  Local currency 79,860 104,619 

                           - Foreign currency - 6,841 

4,618,642                 25,325,608                    

6,211,703 26,734,940

13 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

48,000,000 (2016: 48,000,000) shares issued for cash 480,000,000            480,000,000                  

38,577,920 (2016: 38,577,920) shares issued as fully paid bonus shares 385,779,200            385,779,200                  

             865,779,200                    865,779,200 

ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

13.1 Fully paid ordinary shares

No of shares  Amount (Rs)

Balance as at July 1, 2015                78,707,200 787,072,000

                  

Bonus shares issued during the year 7,870,720
 

78,707,200
                    

Balance as at June 30, 2016 86,577,920
 

865,779,200
 

Shares issued during the year -
 

-
 

Balance as at June 30, 2017 86,577,920
 

865,779,200
 

14 SHARE PREMIUM

15 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Opening balance 580,773,319
            

65,892,542
                    

Addi�on during the year -                             514,880,777                  

Transferred to un-appropriated profit (20,870,351)             -                                   

559,902,968            580,773,319 

Related deferred tax liability

Opening liability 30,731,593               -  

Addi�on during the year - restated -                             30,731,593 

Adjustment due to change:

   -normal tax (991,342)                   -  

   -Income subject to final tax regime 2,626,742                 -  

incremental depricia�on transferred to profit and loss account (1,698,847)               -  

30,668,146 30,731,593                    

529,234,822 550,041,726 

16 LONG TERM FINANCING

Banking companies - secured 16.1 186,891,490            265,000,000                  

Directors and sponsors - unsecured 16.2 213,493,000            165,000,000                  

400,384,490            430,000,000                  

These represent share premium of Rs. 2.5 per share on 25,000,000 ordinary shares issued to general public during the previous years and share

premium at Rs. 10 per share on 2,000,000 ordinary shares issued through right offer in previous years.

2017 2016

 Rupees  Rupees Note
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees
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                           - Foreign currency - 6,841 

4,618,642                 25,325,608                    

6,211,703 26,734,940
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Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

48,000,000 (2016: 48,000,000) shares issued for cash 480,000,000            480,000,000                  

38,577,920 (2016: 38,577,920) shares issued as fully paid bonus shares 385,779,200            385,779,200                  

             865,779,200                    865,779,200 

ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

13.1 Fully paid ordinary shares

No of shares  Amount (Rs)

Balance as at July 1, 2015                78,707,200 787,072,000

                  

Bonus shares issued during the year 7,870,720
 

78,707,200
                    

Balance as at June 30, 2016 86,577,920
 

865,779,200
 

Shares issued during the year -
 

-
 

Balance as at June 30, 2017 86,577,920
 

865,779,200
 

14 SHARE PREMIUM

15 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Opening balance 580,773,319
            

65,892,542
                    

Addi�on during the year -                             514,880,777                  

Transferred to un-appropriated profit (20,870,351)             -                                   

559,902,968            580,773,319 

Related deferred tax liability

Opening liability 30,731,593               -  

Addi�on during the year - restated -                             30,731,593 

Adjustment due to change:

   -normal tax (991,342)                   -  

   -Income subject to final tax regime 2,626,742                 -  

incremental depricia�on transferred to profit and loss account (1,698,847)               -  

30,668,146 30,731,593                    

529,234,822 550,041,726 

16 LONG TERM FINANCING

Banking companies - secured 16.1 186,891,490            265,000,000                  

Directors and sponsors - unsecured 16.2 213,493,000            165,000,000                  

400,384,490            430,000,000                  

These represent share premium of Rs. 2.5 per share on 25,000,000 ordinary shares issued to general public during the previous years and share

premium at Rs. 10 per share on 2,000,000 ordinary shares issued through right offer in previous years.

2017 2016

 Rupees  Rupees Note
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16.1 Banking companies - secured

Bank Alfalah Limited 16.1.1 60,000,000               96,523,510                    

MCB Bank Limited - II 16.1.2 -                                  13,142,855                    

The Bank of Punjab - III 16.1.3 -                                  12,994,696                    

Askari Bank Limited 16.1.4 25,915,000               -                                       

NIB Bank Limited 16.1.5 218,507,412 273,485,000 

304,422,412 396,146,061 

Less: Current por�on presented under current liabili�es            (117,530,922)                  (131,146,061)

             186,891,490                    265,000,000 

16.2 Directors and sponsors - unsecured

16.1.3 The finance has been obtained to import and install generators for capital expenditure and is secured by first parri passu charge over present

and future opera�ng fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The finance carries mark-up at the rate of

3 months KIBOR plus 3% (2016: three months KIBOR plus 3% per annum), payable quarterly. The finance is repayable in eight equal quarterly

installments with the first installment due in April 2015.

16.1.4 The finance has been obtained to finance/re�re import documents pertaining to tex�le machinery for upgrada�on and is secured by first pari

passu charge upto Rs. 34.667 million over opera�ng fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The

finance carries mark-up at SBP Rate plus 2.5% per annum, payable quarterly. The finance is repayable in twelve equal quarterly installments with

the first installment due in February 2019.

16.1.5 The finance has been obtained for restructuring of short term borrowing and is secured by first pari passu charge over opera�ng fixed assets of

the Company amoun�ng to Rs. 400 million and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors and subordina�on of Directors' loan amoun�ng

to Rs. 170 million. The finance carries mark-up at three months KIBOR plus 2.50% per annum (2016: three months KIBOR plus 2.5% per annum),

payable quarterly. The finance is repayable in twenty equal quarterly installments with the first installment due in June 2015.

These represent finances obtained from directors and sponsors of the Company and is unsecured. The finance carries markup at six months

KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum (2016: six months KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum). The lenders on their sole discre�on may waive full or par�al

payment of markup on these finances.

16.1.1 The finance has been obtained to finance purchase of machinery and is secured by first pari passu charge upto Rs. 300 million over opera�ng

fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The finance carries mark-up at three months KIBOR plus 3%

per annum (2016: three months KIBOR plus 3% per annum), payable quarterly. The finance is repayable in twenty two equal quarterly

installments with the first installment due in May 2013.

16.1.2 The finance has been obtained to finance machinery for BMR purposes and is secured by first pari passu charge or Rs. 176 million over opera�ng

fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The finance carries mark-up at the rate of six months KIBOR

plus 2.5% per annum (2016: six months KIBOR plus 2.5% per annum), payable quarterly. The finance is repayable in seven equal semi-annual

installments with the first installment due in November, 2013.

2017 2016

 Rupees  Rupees Note
17

2017 2016

Rupees Rupees

Present value of minimum lease payments 41,762,839               51,528,936                    

Current por�on presented under current liabili�es (16,103,408) (15,404,291)                   

25,659,431 36,124,645                    

2017 2016

Note Rupees Rupees

Not later than one year 18,600,948               19,029,272                    

Later than one year but not later than five years 27,740,644 40,284,783 

Total future minimum lease payments 46,341,592 59,314,055 

Finance charge allocated to future periods (4,578,753) (7,785,119) 

Present value of future minimum lease payments 41,762,839 51,528,936 

Not later than one year (16,103,408) (15,404,291) 

Later than one year but not later than five years 25,659,431 36,124,645 

18 DEFERRED LIABILITIES

These include the following:

Employees re�rement benefits 18.1 14,249,582               14,564,105                    

Deferred taxa�on - restated 18.2                77,860,876 74,107,112                    

               92,110,458 88,671,217                    

18.1 Employees re�rement benefits

2017 2016

Rupees Rupees

               14,249,582                      14,564,105 

16,405,215                                    13,114,036 

18.1.1 Liability recognized in the balance sheet

Present value of defined benefit obliga�on

18.1.2 Amounts recognized in profit and loss account

Current service cost

Interest cost 411,258                                               910,919 

               16,816,473                      14,024,955 

17.1 These represent vehicles and machinery acquired under finance lease arrangements. The leases are priced at three months KIBOR plus 2% per

annum for machinery and six months KIBOR plus 1.5% and 2.5% per annum for vehicles (2016: three months KIBOR plus 2% per annum). Lease

rentals are payable monthly/quarterly over a tenor ranging from four to five years. Under the terms of agreement, taxes, repairs, replacements

and insurance costs in respect of assets subject to finance lease are borne by the Company. The Company also has the op�on to acquire these

assets at the end of their respec�ve lease terms by adjus�ng the deposit amount against the residual value of the asset and intends to exercise

the op�on.

17.2 The amount of future payments under the finance lease arrangements  and the period in which these payments will become due are as follows:

The defined benefits obliga�on based on actuarial valua�on carried out by independent actuary as at June 30, 2017 under Projected Unit Credit

Method is as follows:

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE
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16.2 Directors and sponsors - unsecured

16.1.3 The finance has been obtained to import and install generators for capital expenditure and is secured by first parri passu charge over present

and future opera�ng fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The finance carries mark-up at the rate of

3 months KIBOR plus 3% (2016: three months KIBOR plus 3% per annum), payable quarterly. The finance is repayable in eight equal quarterly

installments with the first installment due in April 2015.

16.1.4 The finance has been obtained to finance/re�re import documents pertaining to tex�le machinery for upgrada�on and is secured by first pari

passu charge upto Rs. 34.667 million over opera�ng fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The

finance carries mark-up at SBP Rate plus 2.5% per annum, payable quarterly. The finance is repayable in twelve equal quarterly installments with

the first installment due in February 2019.
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KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum (2016: six months KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum). The lenders on their sole discre�on may waive full or par�al
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fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The finance carries mark-up at the rate of six months KIBOR
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The defined benefits obliga�on based on actuarial valua�on carried out by independent actuary as at June 30, 2017 under Projected Unit Credit

Method is as follows:

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE



HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E D

Hira Tex�le Mills Limited42 HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E D

Annual Report 2017 43

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended June 30, 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended June 30, 2017

18.1.3 Changes in present value of defined benefit obliga�on

As at beginning of the year                14,564,105                      18,322,236 

Charged to profit or loss                16,816,473                      14,024,955 

Benefits paid during the year               (17,783,172)                    (17,958,960)

Actuarial loss arising during the year                      652,176                            175,874 

               14,249,582                      14,564,105 

2017 2016

Rupees Rupees

2017 2016

Restated

%age 7.75% 7.25%

%age 6.75% 6.25%

12 Years 9 Years

18.1.4 Principal actuarial assump�ons 

Discount rate (per annum)

Expected return on plan assets (per annum)

Average expected remaining working life �me of employees 

18.1.5 Sensi�vity Analysis

Rupees

Discount rate (per annum) 1%                      12,288,502 

-1%                    (16,619,985)

Salary growth rate 1%                    (16,619,985)

-1%                      12,254,834 

Average dura�on of defined benefit obliga�on is 11 Years

The defined benefit plan exposes the Company to the following actuarial risks:

Salary risk

Mortality / withdrawal risk

The risk that the actual mortality / withdrawal experience is different. 

Change in actuarial 

assump�on Defined benefit 

obliga�on (increase) / 

decrease 

The risk that the final salary at the �me of cessa�on of service is higher than what was assumed.

18.2 Deferred taxa�on 2017 2016

Note
Rupees Rupees

This comprises the following: 

Tax deprecia�on allowance 98,137,465 93,016,737 

Surplus on revalua�on of property, plant and equipment 30,668,146 30,731,593 

128,805,611 123,748,330 

Provision for employee benefits 1,081,723                 1,198,674 

Liabili�es against assets subject to finance lease 3,230,406                 3,634,078 

Un-used tax losses 46,632,606               44,808,466 

(50,944,735)             (49,641,218)                   

77,860,876               74,107,112 

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors - unsecured 353,339,012            217,815,660                  

Accrued liabili�es 44,107,362               48,203,107                    

Advances from customers - unsecured 17,355,637               55,716,482                    

Due to associated company 19.1 281,436,554            249,343,554                  

Workers' Profit Par�cipa�on Fund 19.2 781,124                    781,124                          

Workers' Welfare Fund 19.3 1,958,211                 1,958,211                       

Unclaimed dividend 2,879,176                 2,879,838                       

             701,857,076                    576,697,976

19.1 This carries mark-up ranging from 9.51% to 9.72% (2016: 10.41% to 11.01%) per annum. The maximum aggregate amount due at the end of any

month during the year was Rs. 281.4 million (2016: Rs. 249.3 million).

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:

Deferred tax asset on deduc�ble temporary difference arising in respect of:

2017 2016

19.2 Workers' Profit Par�cipa�on Fund

Note Rupees Rupees

As at beginning of the year                      781,124                        4,018,372 

Interest on funds u�lized by the Company 19.3.1                                 -                              147,732 

Charged to profit and loss for the year                                 -                              531,982 

Paid during the year                                 -                         (3,916,962)

As at end of the year                      781,124                            781,124 

19.2.1 Interest is charged at Nil (2016: 11%) per annum.
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18.1.3 Changes in present value of defined benefit obliga�on

As at beginning of the year                14,564,105                      18,322,236 

Charged to profit or loss                16,816,473                      14,024,955 

Benefits paid during the year               (17,783,172)                    (17,958,960)

Actuarial loss arising during the year                      652,176                            175,874 

               14,249,582                      14,564,105 

2017 2016

Rupees Rupees

2017 2016

Restated

%age 7.75% 7.25%

%age 6.75% 6.25%

12 Years 9 Years

18.1.4 Principal actuarial assump�ons 

Discount rate (per annum)

Expected return on plan assets (per annum)

Average expected remaining working life �me of employees 

18.1.5 Sensi�vity Analysis

Rupees

Discount rate (per annum) 1%                      12,288,502 

-1%                    (16,619,985)

Salary growth rate 1%                    (16,619,985)

-1%                      12,254,834 

Average dura�on of defined benefit obliga�on is 11 Years

The defined benefit plan exposes the Company to the following actuarial risks:

Salary risk

Mortality / withdrawal risk

The risk that the actual mortality / withdrawal experience is different. 

Change in actuarial 

assump�on Defined benefit 

obliga�on (increase) / 

decrease 

The risk that the final salary at the �me of cessa�on of service is higher than what was assumed.

18.2 Deferred taxa�on 2017 2016

Note
Rupees Rupees

This comprises the following: 

Tax deprecia�on allowance 98,137,465 93,016,737 

Surplus on revalua�on of property, plant and equipment 30,668,146 30,731,593 

128,805,611 123,748,330 

Provision for employee benefits 1,081,723                 1,198,674 

Liabili�es against assets subject to finance lease 3,230,406                 3,634,078 

Un-used tax losses 46,632,606               44,808,466 

(50,944,735)             (49,641,218)                   

77,860,876               74,107,112 

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors - unsecured 353,339,012            217,815,660                  

Accrued liabili�es 44,107,362               48,203,107                    

Advances from customers - unsecured 17,355,637               55,716,482                    

Due to associated company 19.1 281,436,554            249,343,554                  

Workers' Profit Par�cipa�on Fund 19.2 781,124                    781,124                          

Workers' Welfare Fund 19.3 1,958,211                 1,958,211                       

Unclaimed dividend 2,879,176                 2,879,838                       

             701,857,076                    576,697,976

19.1 This carries mark-up ranging from 9.51% to 9.72% (2016: 10.41% to 11.01%) per annum. The maximum aggregate amount due at the end of any

month during the year was Rs. 281.4 million (2016: Rs. 249.3 million).

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:

Deferred tax asset on deduc�ble temporary difference arising in respect of:

2017 2016

19.2 Workers' Profit Par�cipa�on Fund

Note Rupees Rupees

As at beginning of the year                      781,124                        4,018,372 

Interest on funds u�lized by the Company 19.3.1                                 -                              147,732 

Charged to profit and loss for the year                                 -                              531,982 

Paid during the year                                 -                         (3,916,962)

As at end of the year                      781,124                            781,124 

19.2.1 Interest is charged at Nil (2016: 11%) per annum.
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The facili�es carry mark-up ranging from 8.24% to 8.53% (2016: 8.24% to 9.29%) per annum.

The facili�es carry mark-up ranging from 7.54% to 9.28% (2016: 7.85% to 10.01%) per annum.

21.2 These facili�es have been obtained from various banks for working capital requirements, and are secured by pledge of raw material. 

21.3 These facili�es have been obtained from various banks for working capital requirements, and are secured by The facili�es carry mark-up ranging

from  7.54% to 8.56% (2016: 8.25% to 9.55%) per annum.

21.4 These facili�es have been obtained from various banks for working capital requirements, and are secured by pledge of imported raw material. 

The facili�es carry mark-up ranging from 8.06% to 8.78% (2016: 8.51% to 9.04%) per annum.

21.5 The aggregate unavailed short term borrowing facili�es amount to Rs. 746.337 million (2016: Rs. 1,118.672 million).

21.6 This represents loan obtained from director for working capital requirements. The facility carries mark-up ranging from 8.20% to 8.28% (2016:

8.25% to 8.50%) and will mature in April 2018.

2017 2016

22 CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM FINANCING

Rupees Rupees

23 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Con�ngencies

2017 2016

 Rupees  Rupees 

23.5

               29,542,428                      27,979,420 

               56,278,000                      65,838,562 

85,820,428 93,817,982                    

Commitments

Commitments under irrevocable le�er of credit for:

Purchase of stores, spares and loose tools 107,531,846            4,726,131                       

Purchase of raw material 51,429,131               162,502,443                  

Purchase of machinery -                             25,273,680                    

158,960,977            192,502,254 

23.7

2017 2016

 Rupees  Rupees 

Not later than one year 2,700,000                 2,100,000                       

Later than one year but not later than five years -                             -                                   

2,700,000                 2,100,000                       

23.8 The total of future minimum Ijarah payments under non cancelable Ijarah (Lease) is as follows:

23.6 The Company has rented office premises under opera�ng lease arrangement with directors. Commitment for payments in future periods under

the lease are as follows:

23.3 For the tax year 2011, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) created a tax demand amoun�ng to Rs. 28.7 million. The Company filed an

appeal before CIR-A which is pending adjudica�on.

No provision on account of above con�ngencies has been made in these financial statements as the management and the tax / legal advisors of

the Company are of the view, that these ma�ers will eventually be se�led in favour of the Company.

23.4 Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (“GIDC”) has been levied with effect from December 15, 2011 on industrial gas customers firstly through

OGRA no�fica�on and subsequently via GID Cess Ordinance 2014 and GID Cess Act 2015. The Company, along with other industrial concerns, has

filed a writ pe��on in the Honorable High Court of Sindh challenging the imposi�on of GIDC. On October 26, 2016, the Honorable High Court of

Sindh held that enactment of GIDC Act 2015 is ultra-vires to the cons�tu�on of Pakistan. The Company has not accrued expense rela�ng to GIDC

aggrega�ng to Rs. 50.74 million.

Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company

Post dated cheques in favor of Commissioner Inland   Revenue and 

Collector of Customs

23.1 The Company received a demand order in respect of detec�on bill amoun�ng to Rs. 6.7 million. The Company has filed an appeal before

Honorable Lahore High Court against the said detec�on bill. Interim relief has been granted by the Court in this regard. 

23.2 For the tax year 2010, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) created a tax demand amoun�ng to Rs. 186.6 million. The Company filed

an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue-Appeals (CIR-A) who par�ally remanded back the case but upheld the reduc�on in refund

amoun�ng to Rs. 0.6 million. The Company has filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), which is pending

adjudica�on.

Long term finances              117,530,922                    131,146,061 

Liabili�es against assets subject to finance lease                16,103,408                      15,404,291 

             133,634,330                    146,550,352 

                   

                   

19.3 Workers' Welfare Fund

As at beginning of the year                   1,958,211                        1,756,058 

Charged to profit and loss for the year                                 -                              202,153 

Paid during the year                                 -                                         -   

As at end of the year                   1,958,211                        1,958,211 

20 ACCRUED MARK-UP

Mark-up accrued on:

Long term financing 19,825,550               15,253,245                    

Liabili�es against assets subject to finance lease 723,209                    3,248,051                       

Short term borrowings 39,137,992               38,847,221                    

59,686,751               57,348,517 

21 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies-secured

Running finance 21.1 63,582,433               59,983,875                    

Cash finance 21.2 725,103,641            490,288,595                  

Finance against packing credit 21.3 773,656,170            784,614,237                  

Finance against imported merchandise 21.4 231,261,391            100,732,000                  

From Directors-unsecured 21.6 262,664,450            248,315,020                  

2,056,268,085         1,683,933,727               

21.1 These facili�es have been obtained from various banks for working capital requirements, and are secured by Pari Passu charge on present and

future current assets of the Company.

2017 2016

Note Rupees Rupees
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The facili�es carry mark-up ranging from 8.24% to 8.53% (2016: 8.24% to 9.29%) per annum.

The facili�es carry mark-up ranging from 7.54% to 9.28% (2016: 7.85% to 10.01%) per annum.

21.2 These facili�es have been obtained from various banks for working capital requirements, and are secured by pledge of raw material. 

21.3 These facili�es have been obtained from various banks for working capital requirements, and are secured by The facili�es carry mark-up ranging

from  7.54% to 8.56% (2016: 8.25% to 9.55%) per annum.

21.4 These facili�es have been obtained from various banks for working capital requirements, and are secured by pledge of imported raw material. 

The facili�es carry mark-up ranging from 8.06% to 8.78% (2016: 8.51% to 9.04%) per annum.

21.5 The aggregate unavailed short term borrowing facili�es amount to Rs. 746.337 million (2016: Rs. 1,118.672 million).

21.6 This represents loan obtained from director for working capital requirements. The facility carries mark-up ranging from 8.20% to 8.28% (2016:

8.25% to 8.50%) and will mature in April 2018.

2017 2016

22 CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM FINANCING

Rupees Rupees

23 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Con�ngencies

2017 2016

 Rupees  Rupees 

23.5

               29,542,428                      27,979,420 

               56,278,000                      65,838,562 

85,820,428 93,817,982                    

Commitments

Commitments under irrevocable le�er of credit for:

Purchase of stores, spares and loose tools 107,531,846            4,726,131                       

Purchase of raw material 51,429,131               162,502,443                  

Purchase of machinery -                             25,273,680                    

158,960,977            192,502,254 

23.7

2017 2016

 Rupees  Rupees 

Not later than one year 2,700,000                 2,100,000                       

Later than one year but not later than five years -                             -                                   

2,700,000                 2,100,000                       

23.8 The total of future minimum Ijarah payments under non cancelable Ijarah (Lease) is as follows:

23.6 The Company has rented office premises under opera�ng lease arrangement with directors. Commitment for payments in future periods under

the lease are as follows:

23.3 For the tax year 2011, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) created a tax demand amoun�ng to Rs. 28.7 million. The Company filed an

appeal before CIR-A which is pending adjudica�on.

No provision on account of above con�ngencies has been made in these financial statements as the management and the tax / legal advisors of

the Company are of the view, that these ma�ers will eventually be se�led in favour of the Company.

23.4 Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (“GIDC”) has been levied with effect from December 15, 2011 on industrial gas customers firstly through

OGRA no�fica�on and subsequently via GID Cess Ordinance 2014 and GID Cess Act 2015. The Company, along with other industrial concerns, has

filed a writ pe��on in the Honorable High Court of Sindh challenging the imposi�on of GIDC. On October 26, 2016, the Honorable High Court of

Sindh held that enactment of GIDC Act 2015 is ultra-vires to the cons�tu�on of Pakistan. The Company has not accrued expense rela�ng to GIDC

aggrega�ng to Rs. 50.74 million.

Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company

Post dated cheques in favor of Commissioner Inland   Revenue and 

Collector of Customs

23.1 The Company received a demand order in respect of detec�on bill amoun�ng to Rs. 6.7 million. The Company has filed an appeal before

Honorable Lahore High Court against the said detec�on bill. Interim relief has been granted by the Court in this regard. 

23.2 For the tax year 2010, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) created a tax demand amoun�ng to Rs. 186.6 million. The Company filed

an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue-Appeals (CIR-A) who par�ally remanded back the case but upheld the reduc�on in refund

amoun�ng to Rs. 0.6 million. The Company has filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), which is pending

adjudica�on.

Long term finances              117,530,922                    131,146,061 

Liabili�es against assets subject to finance lease                16,103,408                      15,404,291 

             133,634,330                    146,550,352 

                   

                   

19.3 Workers' Welfare Fund

As at beginning of the year                   1,958,211                        1,756,058 

Charged to profit and loss for the year                                 -                              202,153 

Paid during the year                                 -                                         -   

As at end of the year                   1,958,211                        1,958,211 

20 ACCRUED MARK-UP

Mark-up accrued on:

Long term financing 19,825,550               15,253,245                    

Liabili�es against assets subject to finance lease 723,209                    3,248,051                       

Short term borrowings 39,137,992               38,847,221                    

59,686,751               57,348,517 

21 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies-secured

Running finance 21.1 63,582,433               59,983,875                    

Cash finance 21.2 725,103,641            490,288,595                  

Finance against packing credit 21.3 773,656,170            784,614,237                  

Finance against imported merchandise 21.4 231,261,391            100,732,000                  

From Directors-unsecured 21.6 262,664,450            248,315,020                  

2,056,268,085         1,683,933,727               

21.1 These facili�es have been obtained from various banks for working capital requirements, and are secured by Pari Passu charge on present and

future current assets of the Company.

2017 2016

Note Rupees Rupees
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2017 2016

 Rupees  Rupees 

Not later than one year 1,375,535                 3,678,120                       

Later than one year but not later than five years 256,700                    1,158,279                       

1,632,235 4,836,399                       

24 SALES

Note

Local

Export 24.1

Gross sales

Sales return

Sales tax

Rebate Income

Local

Export 24.1

Gross sales

Sales return

Sales tax

24.1 Yarn export sales include indirect exports amoun�ng to Rs. 1,507.5 million (2016: Rs. 1,889.5 million)

588,953,908 152,811,770            741,765,678                  

2,617,009,130 -                             2,617,009,130               

3,205,963,038 152,811,770            3,358,774,808               

(9,889,061) -                             (9,889,061)                     

- (871,373)                   (871,373)                         

13,260,480 -                             13,260,480                    

3,209,334,457 151,940,397            3,361,274,854               

785,465,749            103,464,366                             

2,733,709,693         -                                           

3,519,175,442         103,464,366                          

(50,384,549)             -                                               

(45,641,298)             (3,217,576)                                  

3,423,149,595         100,246,790                          

888,930,115 

2,733,709,693 

3,622,639,808 

(50,384,549) 

(48,858,874) 

3,523,396,385 

2017

Finished Goods Waste Total

RupeesRupeesRupees

2016

Finished Goods Waste Total

RupeesRupeesRupees

2017 2016

25 COST OF SALES Note Rupees Rupees

Raw material consumed 25.1 1,773,519,933         2,239,771,632               

Packing material consumed 76,074,609               64,674,303                    

Stores, spares and loose tools consumed 39,595,551               42,705,703                    

Salaries, wages and benefits 25.2 335,869,489            285,440,835                  

Insurance 20,803,404               13,621,853                    

Power and fuel 447,798,166            353,673,827                  

Dyes and chemicals 27,096,403               28,912,073                    

Deprecia�on 131,403,654            110,705,084                  

Others 36,431,644 15,023,068                    

2,888,592,853 3,154,528,378               

Work-in-process

At beginning of year 55,584,531 51,749,875 

At end of year (28,968,189) (55,584,531) 

26,616,342 (3,834,656) 

Cost of goods manufactured 2,915,209,195 3,150,693,722 

Finished goods

At beginning of year 448,481,587 444,313,193 

Yarn purchased - 42,205,439 

At end of year (257,428,763) (448,481,587) 

191,052,824 38,037,045 

Cost of goods sold 3,106,262,019 3,188,730,767               

25.1 Raw material consumed

At beginning of the year 1,045,266,445 1,210,595,501               

Add: Purchases - net 2,469,890,241 2,082,947,793               

Sold during the year (18,836,595) (8,505,217)                     

Less: At end of the year (1,722,800,157) (1,045,266,445) 

1,773,519,933 2,239,771,632 

25.2

26 DISTRIBUTION COST

Export

Ocean freight and forwarding 25,994,044               16,521,004                    

Commission 11,598,855               14,564,093                    

Others 93,180 1,265,440                       

37,686,079 32,350,537 

Local

Commission 3,488,887 4,326,275 

41,174,966
 

36,676,812
 

Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 16.8 million (2016: Rs. 14.1  million) in respect of employee re�rement benefits.

                 

                   

              

              

              

              

                    

2017 2016

Rupees Rupees
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2017 2016

 Rupees  Rupees 

Not later than one year 1,375,535                 3,678,120                       

Later than one year but not later than five years 256,700                    1,158,279                       

1,632,235 4,836,399                       

24 SALES

Note

Local

Export 24.1

Gross sales

Sales return

Sales tax

Rebate Income

Local

Export 24.1

Gross sales

Sales return

Sales tax

24.1 Yarn export sales include indirect exports amoun�ng to Rs. 1,507.5 million (2016: Rs. 1,889.5 million)

588,953,908 152,811,770            741,765,678                  

2,617,009,130 -                             2,617,009,130               

3,205,963,038 152,811,770            3,358,774,808               

(9,889,061) -                             (9,889,061)                     

- (871,373)                   (871,373)                         

13,260,480 -                             13,260,480                    

3,209,334,457 151,940,397            3,361,274,854               

785,465,749            103,464,366                             

2,733,709,693         -                                           

3,519,175,442         103,464,366                          

(50,384,549)             -                                               

(45,641,298)             (3,217,576)                                  

3,423,149,595         100,246,790                          

888,930,115 

2,733,709,693 

3,622,639,808 

(50,384,549) 

(48,858,874) 

3,523,396,385 

2017

Finished Goods Waste Total

RupeesRupeesRupees

2016

Finished Goods Waste Total

RupeesRupeesRupees

2017 2016

25 COST OF SALES Note Rupees Rupees

Raw material consumed 25.1 1,773,519,933         2,239,771,632               

Packing material consumed 76,074,609               64,674,303                    

Stores, spares and loose tools consumed 39,595,551               42,705,703                    

Salaries, wages and benefits 25.2 335,869,489            285,440,835                  

Insurance 20,803,404               13,621,853                    

Power and fuel 447,798,166            353,673,827                  

Dyes and chemicals 27,096,403               28,912,073                    

Deprecia�on 131,403,654            110,705,084                  

Others 36,431,644 15,023,068                    

2,888,592,853 3,154,528,378               

Work-in-process

At beginning of year 55,584,531 51,749,875 

At end of year (28,968,189) (55,584,531) 

26,616,342 (3,834,656) 

Cost of goods manufactured 2,915,209,195 3,150,693,722 

Finished goods

At beginning of year 448,481,587 444,313,193 

Yarn purchased - 42,205,439 

At end of year (257,428,763) (448,481,587) 

191,052,824 38,037,045 

Cost of goods sold 3,106,262,019 3,188,730,767               

25.1 Raw material consumed

At beginning of the year 1,045,266,445 1,210,595,501               

Add: Purchases - net 2,469,890,241 2,082,947,793               

Sold during the year (18,836,595) (8,505,217)                     

Less: At end of the year (1,722,800,157) (1,045,266,445) 

1,773,519,933 2,239,771,632 

25.2

26 DISTRIBUTION COST

Export

Ocean freight and forwarding 25,994,044               16,521,004                    

Commission 11,598,855               14,564,093                    

Others 93,180 1,265,440                       

37,686,079 32,350,537 

Local

Commission 3,488,887 4,326,275 

41,174,966
 

36,676,812
 

Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 16.8 million (2016: Rs. 14.1  million) in respect of employee re�rement benefits.

                 

                   

              

              

              

              

                    

2017 2016

Rupees Rupees



HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E D

Hira Tex�le Mills Limited48 HIRA TEXTILE MILLS
L I M I T E D

Annual Report 2017 49

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended June 30, 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended June 30, 2017

27 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 27.1 24,551,569
               

28,166,091
                    

Rent, rates and taxes 27.2 5,041,212
                 

4,804,753
                       

Ijarah payments 2,602,258
                 

13,404,095
                    

Prin�ng and sta�onery 1,095,653                 995,749                          

Communica�on 1,317,570                 876,287                          

Electricity, water and gas 1,350,435                 1,776,043                       

Repair and maintenance 229,021                    268,312                          

Vehicles running and maintenance 1,441,808                 1,727,062                       

Traveling and conveyance 2,404,842                 2,147,886                       

Legal and professional charges 4,546,223                 2,666,417                       

Auditors' remunera�on 27.3 1,371,250                 1,225,000                       

Fee and subscrip�on 1,745,478                 2,086,101                       

Entertainment 139,907                    259,499                          

Insurance 897,490                    277,997                          

Deprecia�on 2,681,705                 2,259,287                       

Others 2,252,092                 921,712                          

53,668,513               63,862,291 

27.1

27.2 These include charge in respect of office rent paid to directors amoun�ng to Rs.4.8 million  (2016: Rs.4.2 million).

2017 2016

27.3 Auditor's remunera�on

Note Rupees Rupees

Annual statutory audit                      660,000                            600,000 

Half yearly review                      243,750                            200,000 

Review report under Code of Corporate Governance                      192,500                            175,000 

Out of pocket expenses                      275,000                            250,000 

                  1,371,250                        1,225,000 

28 OTHER INCOME

Income from non-financial assets

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 875,872                    5,714,916                       

875,872                    5,714,916                       

These include charge in respect of provident fund amoun�ng to Rs. 2.4 million (2016: 2.6 million).

                   

                   

2017 2016

Rupees Rupees

                   

29 FINANCE COST

Mark-up on borrowings:

Long term financing 29.1 29,568,160

               

41,263,094

                    

Liabili�es against assets subject to finance lease 3,556,594
                 

4,910,743
                       

Short term borrowings 166,795,647
            

166,402,851
                  

Balances with related par�es 8,862,744
                 

4,816,312
                       

208,783,145
            

217,393,000
 

Interest on Workers' Profit Par�cipa�on Fund -
                             

147,732
 

Bank charges and commission 10,772,782
               

10,869,582
 

219,555,927
            

228,410,314
 

29.1

2017 2016

30 OTHER CHARGES

Note Rupees Rupees

Loss on financial instruments

Foreign exchange loss                                 -                              672,721 

Others

Workers' Profit Par�cipa�on Fund                                 -   531,982                          
Workers' Welfare Fund                                 -   202,153                          
Dona�ons 30.1                      207,000                            118,750 

                     207,000                        1,525,606 

30.1 None of the directors or their spouses had any interest in dona�ons made by the Company.

2017 2016

Rupees Rupees

31 PROVISION FOR TAXATION 

Current

-for the year 35,325,144
               

29,645,689
                    

-for prior year -
                                 

513,790
                          

35,325,144
               

30,159,479
                    

Deferred 1,177,469

                 
(22,297,169)

                   
36,502,613

               

7,862,310

                       

During the year, mark-up of Rs. 11.5 million (2016: Rs. 14.0 million) on long term financing from directors and sponsors has been waived by the

lenders on their discre�on.

During the year Company incur tax losses, consequently, according to sec�on 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 has paid only minimum tax on

its local sales other then items falling under FTR.

2017 2016

Note Rupees Rupees
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2017 2016

32 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Rupees Rupees

There is no dilu�ve effect on the basic earning per share which is based on:

Profit / (loss) a�ributable to ordinary shareholders (Rupees) 7,455,749
                         

93,608,023
                 

86,577,920
                       

86,577,920
                 

Earnings per share - (Rupees) 0.09 1.08

33  Financial risk factors

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

2017 2016

USD USD

Cash at banks -                                     65                                
Trade debts 202,381 314,206                      

Net exposure 202,381 314,271                      

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

Rupees per USD

Average rate 105.78 104.18

Repor�ng date rate 106.30 105.25

(ii)  Interest rate risk

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 

year (Numbers)

The Company’s ac�vi�es expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other price risk and interest rate risk), credit

risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize

poten�al adverse effects on the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board). The Board provides principles for overall risk management as well as policies

covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity. All treasury related

transac�ons are carried out within the parameters of these policies.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. 

Currency risk arises mainly where payables exist due to transac�ons with foreign suppliers.

The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the United States Dollar (USD).

Currently, the Company’s foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to bank balances and receivables from foreign en��es. The Company’s

exposure to currency risk was as follows:

If the func�onal currency, at repor�ng date, had fluctuated by 5% against the USD with all other variables held constant, the impact on profit for

the year would have been Rs 1.075 million (2016: Rs 1.689 million), respec�vely higher / lower, mainly as a result of exchange gain / loss on

transla�on of foreign exchange denominated financial instruments. Currency risk sensi�vity to foreign exchange movements has been calculated

on a symmetric basis.

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

interest rates.

At the balance sheet date, the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial instruments was:

2017 2016

Fixed rate instruments

Rupees Rupees

Financial assets

Cash at bank - in saving account

Local currency 79,860
                               

104,619
                      

Foreign currency -
                                          

6,841
                           

Floa�ng rate instruments

Financial liabili�es

Long term financing 534,018,820
                     

576,550,352
              

Short term borrowing 2,056,268,085
                 

1,683,933,727
           

Due to associated company 281,436,554
                     

249,343,554
              

Fair value sensi�vity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Cash flow sensi�vity analysis for variable rate instruments

(iii)  Other price risk

(b)  Credit risk

2017 2016

Rupees Rupees

Long term deposits 32,249,742                       23,260,348                 

Trade debts 78,287,805                       75,832,714                 

Advances, deposits and other receivables 209,644,321                     192,507,169              

Bank balances 4,618,642                         25,325,608                 

324,800,510                     316,925,839              

If the markup rate on financial liabili�es at repor�ng date, had fluctuated by 100 basis points with all other variables held constant, the impact on

profit for the year would have been Rs. 23.20 million (2016: Rs. 22.45 million), respec�vely higher / lower.

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual

financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affec�ng all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to equity

price risk since there are no investments in equity securi�es. The Company is also not exposed to commodity price risk since it has a diverse

por�olio of commodity suppliers.

The credit quality of major financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ra�ngs (if

available) or to historical informa�on about counterparty default rate:

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an

obliga�on. Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and other receivables. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum

credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the repor�ng date was as follows:

If the markup rate on financial liabili�es at repor�ng date, had fluctuated by 100 basis points with all other variables held constant, the impact on

profit for the year would have been Rs. 0.25 million (2016: Rs. Nil ), respec�vely higher / lower.
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Rupees per USD

Average rate 105.78 104.18
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(ii)  Interest rate risk

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 

year (Numbers)

The Company’s ac�vi�es expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other price risk and interest rate risk), credit

risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize

poten�al adverse effects on the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board). The Board provides principles for overall risk management as well as policies

covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity. All treasury related

transac�ons are carried out within the parameters of these policies.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. 

Currency risk arises mainly where payables exist due to transac�ons with foreign suppliers.

The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the United States Dollar (USD).

Currently, the Company’s foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to bank balances and receivables from foreign en��es. The Company’s

exposure to currency risk was as follows:

If the func�onal currency, at repor�ng date, had fluctuated by 5% against the USD with all other variables held constant, the impact on profit for

the year would have been Rs 1.075 million (2016: Rs 1.689 million), respec�vely higher / lower, mainly as a result of exchange gain / loss on

transla�on of foreign exchange denominated financial instruments. Currency risk sensi�vity to foreign exchange movements has been calculated

on a symmetric basis.

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

interest rates.

At the balance sheet date, the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial instruments was:

2017 2016

Fixed rate instruments

Rupees Rupees

Financial assets

Cash at bank - in saving account

Local currency 79,860
                               

104,619
                      

Foreign currency -
                                          

6,841
                           

Floa�ng rate instruments

Financial liabili�es

Long term financing 534,018,820
                     

576,550,352
              

Short term borrowing 2,056,268,085
                 

1,683,933,727
           

Due to associated company 281,436,554
                     

249,343,554
              

Fair value sensi�vity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Cash flow sensi�vity analysis for variable rate instruments

(iii)  Other price risk

(b)  Credit risk

2017 2016

Rupees Rupees

Long term deposits 32,249,742                       23,260,348                 

Trade debts 78,287,805                       75,832,714                 

Advances, deposits and other receivables 209,644,321                     192,507,169              

Bank balances 4,618,642                         25,325,608                 

324,800,510                     316,925,839              

If the markup rate on financial liabili�es at repor�ng date, had fluctuated by 100 basis points with all other variables held constant, the impact on

profit for the year would have been Rs. 23.20 million (2016: Rs. 22.45 million), respec�vely higher / lower.

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual

financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affec�ng all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to equity

price risk since there are no investments in equity securi�es. The Company is also not exposed to commodity price risk since it has a diverse

por�olio of commodity suppliers.

The credit quality of major financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ra�ngs (if

available) or to historical informa�on about counterparty default rate:

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an

obliga�on. Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and other receivables. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum

credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the repor�ng date was as follows:

If the markup rate on financial liabili�es at repor�ng date, had fluctuated by 100 basis points with all other variables held constant, the impact on

profit for the year would have been Rs. 0.25 million (2016: Rs. Nil ), respec�vely higher / lower.



33.1  Fair values of financial assets and liabili�es

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or liabili�es.

2017 2016

Rupees Rupees

33.2  Financial instruments by categories

Financial assets as per balance sheet - Loans and receivables

Long term deposits 32,249,742
                       

23,260,348
                 Advances, deposits and other receivables 209,644,321

                     
192,507,169

              Cash and bank balances 6,211,703
                         

26,734,940
                 

248,105,766
                     

242,502,457
              

Financial liabili�es as per balance sheet - At amor�zed cost

Long term financing 559,678,251
                     

612,674,997
              Short term borrowings 2,056,268,085

                 
1,683,933,727

           Trade and other payables 701,857,076
                     

576,697,976
              Accrued finance cost 59,686,751

                       
57,348,517

                 
3,377,490,163

                 
2,930,655,217

           

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The company don't have any financial instrument which require classifica�on in the above levels except disclosed in the relevent notes.

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and liabili�es reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values. Fair value is the price

that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transac�on between market par�cipants at the measurement

date.

Fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 and 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are

observable and significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its en�rety, which is as follows:

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
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Ra�ng agency 2017 2016

Long term Rupees Rupees

Soneri Bank Limited A1+ AA- PACRA 91,677                               91,677

Bank Alfalah Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 157,652                             581,534                      

Bank Al Habib Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 132,266                             183,585                      

A1+ AA+ PACRA 120,993                             243,260                      

The Bank of Punjab A1+ AA PACRA 652,949                             741,181                      

MCB Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 1,923,636                         22,547,184

United Bank Limited  A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS 210,877                             77,146                        

Na�onal Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA PACRA 33,185                               379,324                      

Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS 134,649                             206,257                      

NIB Bank Limited A1+ AA- PACRA 6,556                                 145,433                      

Samba Bank Limited A-1 AA JCR-VIS 1,000,000                         -                               

Askari Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 71,386                               39,501                        

Meezan Bank Limited A-1+ AA JCR-VIS 62,025                               -                               

JS Bank Limited A1+ AA- PACRA 20,791                               89,526                        

4,618,642                         25,325,608                 

(c) Liquidity risk

The following are the contractual maturi�es of financial liabili�es as at June 30, 2017:

Carrying
amount

Less than
one year

One to 
five years

More than five 

years

Long term finances 517,915,412                  117,530,922                     400,384,490                     -                                   
Liabili�es against assets

subject to finance lease 41,762,839                    16,103,408                       25,659,431                       -                                   
Short term borrowings 2,056,268,085              2,056,268,085                  -                                          -                                   
Accrued mark-up 59,686,751                    59,686,751                       -                                          -                                   
Trade and other payables 701,857,076                 701,857,076 - -

3,377,490,163              2,951,446,242                  426,043,921                     -                                   

The following are the contractual maturi�es of financial liabili�es as at June 30, 2016:

Long term finances 561,146,061                  131,146,061                     430,000,000                     -                                    
Liabili�es against assets -                                    

subject to finance lease 51,528,936                    15,404,291                        36,124,645                       -                                    
Short term borrowings 1,683,933,727              1,683,933,727                  -                                          -                                    
Accrued mark-up 57,348,517                    57,348,517                        -                                          -                                    
Trade and other payables 576,697,976                  576,697,976                     -                                          -                                    

2,930,655,217              2,464,530,572                  466,124,645                     -                                    

Rupees

Ra�ng

Short term

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

Due to the Company’s long standing business rela�onships with bank and a�er giving due considera�on to their strong financial standing,

management does not expect non-performance by it on their obliga�ons to the Company. Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal.

Liquidity risk is the risk that an en�ty will encounter difficulty in mee�ng obliga�ons associated with financial liabili�es.

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Carrying
amount

Less than
one year

One to 
five years

More than five 

years

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

33.3  Capital risk management

34 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related par�es from the Company's perspec�ve comprise, associated undertakings, sponsors, directors and their family members, key

management personnel and post employment benefit plan (provident fund trust). Key management personnel are those persons having

authority and responsibility for planning, direc�ng and controlling the ac�vi�es of the Company, directly or indirectly, and includes the Chief

Execu�ve and Directors of the Company.

Transac�ons with key management personnel are limited to payment of short term and post employment benefits. Transac�ons with sponsors

are limited to provision for loans to the Company. The Company in the normal course of business carries out various transac�ons with other

related par�es and con�nues to have a policy whereby all such transac�ons are carried out on commercial terms and condi�ons which are

equivalent to those prevailing in an arm's length transac�on.

The Company's objec�ves when managing capital are to safeguard Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern in order to provide

maximum return to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors the capital

structure on the basis of debt to equity ra�o.

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic condi�ons and the risk characteris�cs of the underlying assets. In order

to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may, for example, issue new ordinary shares, or obtain / repay loans.
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Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The company don't have any financial instrument which require classifica�on in the above levels except disclosed in the relevent notes.

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and liabili�es reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values. Fair value is the price

that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transac�on between market par�cipants at the measurement

date.

Fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 and 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are

observable and significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its en�rety, which is as follows:

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
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(c) Liquidity risk

The following are the contractual maturi�es of financial liabili�es as at June 30, 2017:

Carrying
amount

Less than
one year

One to 
five years

More than five 

years

Long term finances 517,915,412                  117,530,922                     400,384,490                     -                                   
Liabili�es against assets

subject to finance lease 41,762,839                    16,103,408                       25,659,431                       -                                   
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2,930,655,217              2,464,530,572                  466,124,645                     -                                    

Rupees

Ra�ng

Short term

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

Due to the Company’s long standing business rela�onships with bank and a�er giving due considera�on to their strong financial standing,

management does not expect non-performance by it on their obliga�ons to the Company. Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal.

Liquidity risk is the risk that an en�ty will encounter difficulty in mee�ng obliga�ons associated with financial liabili�es.

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Carrying
amount

Less than
one year

One to 
five years

More than five 

years

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

33.3  Capital risk management

34 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related par�es from the Company's perspec�ve comprise, associated undertakings, sponsors, directors and their family members, key

management personnel and post employment benefit plan (provident fund trust). Key management personnel are those persons having

authority and responsibility for planning, direc�ng and controlling the ac�vi�es of the Company, directly or indirectly, and includes the Chief

Execu�ve and Directors of the Company.

Transac�ons with key management personnel are limited to payment of short term and post employment benefits. Transac�ons with sponsors

are limited to provision for loans to the Company. The Company in the normal course of business carries out various transac�ons with other

related par�es and con�nues to have a policy whereby all such transac�ons are carried out on commercial terms and condi�ons which are

equivalent to those prevailing in an arm's length transac�on.

The Company's objec�ves when managing capital are to safeguard Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern in order to provide

maximum return to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors the capital

structure on the basis of debt to equity ra�o.

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic condi�ons and the risk characteris�cs of the underlying assets. In order

to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may, for example, issue new ordinary shares, or obtain / repay loans.



Details of transac�ons and balances with related par�es are as follows:

2017 2016

Rupees Rupees
34.1 Transac�ons with related par�es

Nature of rela�onship Nature of transac�ons

Associated company

1,069,123,450         1,093,039,783               

15,715,336
               

15,210,286
                    

Expenses charged 21,868,486
               

21,669,110
                    

8,862,744
                 

4,816,312
                       

Sponsors

Interest on borrowings paid -
                             

1,927,431
                       

Interest on borrowings charged 13,772,852

               

14,038,381

                    
Interest on borrowings waived 13,772,852

               

14,038,381

                    
Office rent 4,800,000

                 

4,200,000

                       
Adamjee Insurance Company Limited Insurance premium paid 21,497,591

               

13,750,934

                    

Provident fund trust Contribu�on for the year 2,711,694

                 

2,578,708

                       

34.2 Balances with related par�es Nature of account balance

Associated company Advance obtained 281,137,416

            

249,343,554

                  Sponsors Borrowings
213,493,000

            

165,000,000

                  Key management personnel

483,500

                    

433,107

                          Provident fund trust Payable to provident fund 470,504 689,003

 Short term employee benefits payable 

Sales of yarn, co�on, dyes and chemicals 

Purchases of towels, co�on, waste,

stores and spares

Interest charged on balance due
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35 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Managerial remunera�on                                                      

House rent                                                         

Motor vehicle expenses                                                                           

U�li�es

Post employment benefits

Others

Number of persons

Chief Execu�ve Directors Execu�ves

Rupees Rupees Rupees

2,580,000 1,599,996 3,741,575 

1,290,000 639,996 1,870,788 

55,931 - 749,160 

210,000 159,996 - 

- - 311,797 

- - 83,705 

4,135,931 2,399,988 6,757,025 

1 1 3 

2017

Chief Execu�ve Directors Execu�ves

2016

Rupees Rupees Rupees

2,580,000 1,599,996                 5,385,904                       

1,290,000 639,996                    2,692,956                       

244,487 51,109                       429,825                          

210,000 159,996                    -                                   

- -                             448,820                          

2,500 13,490                       55,131                            

4,326,987 2,464,587                 9,012,636                       

1 1                                 4                                       

Managerial remunera�on

House rent

Motor vehicle expenses

U�li�es

Post employment benefits

Others

Number of persons

36. RECLASSIFICATION

From Rupees

98,664,586

37 EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND TRUST

2017 2016

Restated

Size of the fund -fund assets Rupees                32,920,636 32,347,670                    

Cost/fair value of investments Rupees                30,301,683 30,606,183                    

Percentage of investments made %age 92.04% 94.62%

Break up of investments made by the fund are as follows :

Rupees %age Rupees %age

Government securi�es                  6,500,000 19.74 8,050,000                 24.89

Mutual funds                23,801,683 72.30 22,556,183               69.73

               30,301,683 92.04               30,606,183 94.62

The Company has complied with all the requirements set out by the provisions of sec�on 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 for investments out of

provident fund.

To Reason

Deferred taxa�on Surplus on revalua�on of property, plant

and equipment

        For be�er presenta�on

The informa�on related to Company's audited Employees Provident Fund Trust (the fund) as on June 30, 2017 is as follows:

2017 2016

Restated

Following corresponding figures have been reclassified where necessary to reflect more appropriate presenta�on of events and transac�ons:

2016
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NOTES

38 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

38.1 Spinning

Produc�on capacity
2017 2016

Number of spindles installed No.                        41,424                              41,424 

Installed capacity a�er conversion into 20's count Kgs 15,826,920               15,826,920                    

Actual produc�on

Actual produc�on a�er conversion into 20's count Kgs                12,103,703                      12,827,833 

38.2 Doubling

Produc�on capacity

Number of spindles installed No. 1,094                         1,094                               

Installed capacity a�er conversion into 20's count Bags 51,560                       51,650                            

Actual produc�on

Actual produc�on a�er conversion into 20's count Bags 34,774                       38,566                            

38.3 Dyeing

Produc�on capacity

Installed machines No.                                   4                                        4 

Dyeing capacity Kgs                   1,800,000                        1,800,000 

Actual produc�on

Actual dyeing produc�on Kgs                   1,579,448                        1,575,195 

39 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

2017 2016

Average number of employees                         

Total number of employees                         

40 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

41 GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee.

It is difficult to describe precisely the produc�on capacity in tex�le industry since it fluctuates widely depending on various factors such as count

of yarn spun, spindles speed, twist per inch and raw materials used, etc. It also varies according to the pa�ern of produc�on adopted. Difference

of actual produc�on with installed capacity is in normal course of business.

The total and average number of employees during  year ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Number of Employees

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of the Company and authorized for issue on October 09, 2017.
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1,385 937                                  

1,287 1,482                               

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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The Company Secretary
Hira Tex�le Mills Limited
44 E/1 Gulberg III
Lahore.

Notes: 

Witness Signature

Signature

Affix
Revenue 

Stamp

PROXY FORM
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I / We ______________________________________________________________________________________________ of 

____________________________________________________being a member(s) of Hira Tex�le Mills Limited, and a holder of 

_____________________________________________________________ Ordinary Shares as per Share Register Folio No. 

______________________________________________ (in case of Central Depository System Account Holder A/C 

No.____________________ Par�cipant I.D No.___________________) hereby appoint ________________________  of 

_____________________________________ another member of the Company as per Share Register Folio No. ____________ 

or (Failing him / her______________________  of __________________________ another member of the Company) as my / 

our proxy to a�end and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at Annual General Mee�ng of the Company, to be held on 

October 31, 2017 (Tuesday) at 11.00 AM at the Registered Office of the Company (44 E/1 Gulberg III, Lahore) and at any 

adjournment thereof. 

As witness my hand this ________________________ day of ________________________________  2017  signed by the said 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ in presence of 

_____________________________________________________________________

a. Proxies, in order to be effec�ve, must be received at the Company's Registered Office / head Office not less 
than 48 hours before the mee�ng duly stamped, signed and witnessed.

b. Signature must agree with the specimen signature registered with the Company.

c. In case of Central Depository System Account Holder, an a�ested copy of iden�ty Card should be a�ached to 
this proxy form.

d. No person shall act as proxy unless he is member of the company.
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